
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Rochdale North Township Committee 

Date: Tuesday, 10th August, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Rochdale, OL6 1XU 

 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  4 - 7 

 Minutes of the meeting of Rochdale North Township Committee held 

18th February 2021. 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

5   Open Forum   

 Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to 

raise any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 

Township. 

 

6   Rochdale North Township Delegation Arrangements and 

Appointments 2021/2022  

8 - 13 

 To consider the Township’s delegation arrangements and  

Public Document Pack



appointments to relevant bodies 

7   Rochdale North Township Funds Review  14 - 46 

 To review funding arrangements for Rochdale North Township.  

8   Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22  47 - 131 

 To consider applications for assistance from the Rochdale North 

Township Fund. 

 

8a  Additional Funding Applications  132 - 141 

 To consider additional funding applications  

9   Permanent Diversion of Part of Definitive Restricted Byway 

RocDRupp12 at Stoney Heys in the Healey Ward  

To consider proposal for a footpath. 

142 - 147 

10   Permanently Stop up Part of Definitive Footpath HeyFp25  148 - 153 

 To consider proposals for a footpath.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Rochdale North Township Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Wendy Cocks 
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Kieran Heakin 
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Rachel Massey 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Chair) Councillor Faisal Rana 
Councillor Shah Wazir Councillor Peter Winkler 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact:- 
Peter Thompson 
Committee Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale  
OL16 1XU 
 
Telephone – 01706 924715 
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 18 February 2020 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillors O Neill (Chair),  Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Sultan, 
Cocks, James Gartside, Heakin, Massey, Rana, Wazir and Winkler 

 
OFFICERS: Valery White (Neighbourhoods Directorate), Steve Blezard 
(Adult Care Directorate), Andy Collins (Neighbourhoods Directorate), Nazam 
Suleman (Resources Directorate)  
 
Also in Attendance:  Inspector Meena Yasin (Greater Manchester Police) 
 
Apologies for Absence:  Councillor Michael Holly 
 

22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

23 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Chair advised that a representative from Greater Manchester Police 
would be invited to address the Township Committee to update Members on 
work being undertaken by the Police within the Township and to allow 
Members to raise concerns.  The reason for urgency being that matters to be 
raised required action prior to the next meeting of the Township Committee. 
 

24 GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE - TOWNSHIP UPDATE 
The new Greater Manchester Police Inspector for the Town Centre and 
Deeplish Ward’s addressed the Township Committee in relation to work being 
undertaken within the Township.  Inspector Mina updated the group in regards 
to extra security and working with neighbouring partners such as Town Centre 
Wardens, Rangers and Number One Riverside Security in the next few 
months to ensure the safety of residents and visitors over the period as the 
Town Centre was expected to be very busy due to the ongoing Dippy exhibit 
and Town Centre events. 
 

Members raised concerns of increasing numbers of Off-Road Speeding Bikes 
and Anti-Social Behaviour within the Township. 
 
RESOLVED  
That Members concerns in relation to anti-social behaviour be noted and 
reported back to Greater Manchester Police. 
 

25 HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION 
The Committee received a presentation from Steve Blezard (RBC) relating to 
Integrated Health and Social Care Neighbourhood Teams. 
 
The presentation outlined the: 

 Rationale for integrated neighbourhood teams; 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 Why there were six neighbourhoods in the Borough; 

 The map showing the neighbourhoods; 

 Staff within the Team; 

 Changes that had happened since the Team was formed; 

 Specific Township issues; 
 
Steve Blezard updated Members on their allocated Integrated Neighbourhood 
Lead (Julie Urmston) and further information with contact details would be 
circulated to Members. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the presentation be welcomed. 
 

26 OPEN FORUM 
There were no items raised in the Open Forum. 
 

27 MINUTES - ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Rochdale North Township Committee 
held on 13th November 2019 be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record.  
 

28 MINUTES - ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB-
COMMITTEE 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the Rochdale Township North Delegated Sub-Committee 
meeting held on Thursday 16th  January 2020 be noted.  
 

29 TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2020-2022 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which outlined the Townships Plan for 2020-2022. The Township Plan 
concurrent to the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022 which had been 
recently agreed.  The process included carrying out a review of the Council’s 
values and behaviours which are now Proud, Passionate, Pioneering and 
Open. 
 
In line with the new Corporate Plan, the Townships Plan 2020–2022 has been 
developed around the following priorities: Prosperous People and Places. 
Township Chairs and Vice Chairs worked with the Portfolio Holder for 
Neighbourhoods, Community and Culture to produce the new Townships 
Plan. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
No alternatives to having the Plan were put forward. 
 
RESOLVED: 

1. That the detail included in the Townships Plan 2020-2022 appended to 
the report be noted: 

Page 5



2. It be noted that the plan has been developed in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder, Township Chairs and Vice Chairs in line with priorities 
identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2019-2022; 

3. That the Plan be approved to allow the Townships to focus on local 
priorities in line with the Council’s key priorities – Prosperous People 
and Places. 

 
Reasons for the decision: 
The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years. This plan gathers 
aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council 
Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector active in 
the Rochdale Borough. The Townships Plan identifies priorities determined by 
each Township’s Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years. 
This plan gathers aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision 
makers, Council Services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community 
sector active in the Rochdale Borough. 
 
The Townships Plan 2017-2019 is due to expire. The Townships Plan 2020-
2022 includes objectives identified to meet the priorities identified by each of 
the five Townships. It will also guide and direct and detail the use of devolved 
budgets, including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 2019/20, 
2020/21 and 2021/22. 
 
The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan is 
a live document that can evolve and change to meet new opportunities and 
initiatives, and can be updated to reflect changes as we move forward. 
 

30 2020 - 2022 HIGHWAYS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which sought approval of indicative highways work programmes which were 
proposed to take place during the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years.  
 
The programmes included the following –  

 2 year local transport plan (LTP) funded capital programme; 

 2 year bridges and structures capital maintenance programme; 
 
The budgets with the exception of bridges and structures have been split into 
each Township according to population size. Rochdale North will be allocated 
19% of the total budget.   
 
Alternatives considered: 
No alternatives were considered. The programme has been developed 
according to DfT guidance and in line with other GM Authorities.   
 
RESOLVED: 
That the highways work programmes to be delivered in 2020/21 and 2021/22 
as circulated to Members be noted and approved in principle. 
 
Reasons for the recommendation: 

Page 6



The schemes that have been selected have been put together based on the 
principles of asset management which use network condition data, engineer 
inspections, life cycle planning and cost efficiency to produce the most 
efficient highway improvement over the course of the programmes.  
 
Using Asset management techniques for scheme selection ensures that they 
are in line with recommendations from the Department for Transport (DfT) 
which enables the full funding allocation from the DfT incentive fund scheme. 
Authorities that are deemed not to be carrying out efficient highway 
improvements can have funding reduced and in the case of Rochdale, the 
maximum reduction would be £410k. 
 

Page 7



 

Report to Rochdale North Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 26th July 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Peter Thompson 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Rochdale North Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2021/2022 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To request that the Rochdale North Township Committee confirm its 

delegated decision making arrangements and make appointments to the 
Township Sub-Committees, including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute 
members; the appointment of “lead” opposition spokespersons; and the 
appointment to other bodies.  

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 

That the Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub-Committee be retained, in 
2021/2022, on the terms of reference as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; 
 
That appointments made to the Township Committee, Township Sub-
Committee and other bodies for 2021/2022, as detailed in Appendix 2 of the 
report. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
3.4 

The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution.  
 
The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any 
matter detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is 
essential to take a decision.  
 
Appointments are made, as far as is possible, where appropriate, in 
accordance with the Township Committee’s political balance. 
 
The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3  

 
 
 

Rochdale North Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub-Committee 
will exercise formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as the Committee for 
dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for 
making grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township 
Funds.   
 
Area Forums – The Township Committee appoints appropriate Ward 
Members to the area forums.  
. 
 

Alternatives Considered 
 
The Committee could choose not to appoint Sub-Committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. The Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative 
Sub-Committee arrangements. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 

Page 9



5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation 

arrangements to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with 
relevant and statutory procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-
Committee and the working groups might limit member involvement in key 
initiatives for the Township. 

  

Consultation 

 
7. Not required. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. There are no background 
papers.  

Not applicable. 

 

For Further Information Contact: Peter Thompson,  
Telephone 01706 924715,  
e-mail peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

 

Page 10

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


 

 
 

 
ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES  

DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE   
 

1. To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the Ward/Area 
Forums and other Township Priority Groups and related bodies, referring matters 
of concern to the Township Committee. 

 
2. To exercise, in conjunction with the Rochdale North Township Committee, the 

following delegated powers as detailed in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions 
 
A. Determination of objections/representations in respect of the Appointment 

of Hackney Carriage Stands 
B. Urgent designation of a Conservation Area unless deemed to be strategic 

in nature by the relevant Director and where such items are not 
Development Plan Documents. 

C. To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Rochdale North 
Township Committee 

 
3. To exercise, in conjunction with Rochdale North Township Committee the 

following powers (as contained within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution – 
Responsibility for Functions ) 
A. Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of 

objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in occupation of 
premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal) other than in 
circumstances where a Township Committee chooses not to confirm an 
Order deemed strategic in nature by the Director of Neighbourhoods in 
which case the matter shall be referred to the Cabinet 

B. Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and bridleways, 
deemed to be contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods 

C. Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, 
S.9) 

D. Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22) 

E. Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings (Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23) 

F. Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29) 
G. Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.31) 
H. Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant objections 

by people directly affected (as determined by the Director of 
Neighbourhoods) 

I. Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980 

Page 11



 

(i) The private street works code 
 (ii) General 
 (iii) The advance payment code 

J. Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 deemed 

K. contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods 
L. To keep definitive map and statement under review  
M. Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 1980 

S.26 
N. Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 
O. Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle 

Tracks Act 1984 
P. Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the Township 

relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, bridleways etc.  
 

4. To share responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any related 
delegated budgets and Rochdale North Township Funds) and the 
implementation and development of the Township Plan, with Rochdale North 
Township Committee. 

 
5. To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their 

response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the development of 
their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities. 

 
6. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township Funds), 

to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made. 

7. To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved funding 
with a subsequent report to Rochdale North Township Committee. 

8. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds, 
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 12



Appendix 2 

Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and 
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2021/2022 Municipal Year.  
 
Rochdale North Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee 
 
Councillors –  Ali Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Sultan Ali, Gartside, Heakin, Holly, Iram 
Faisal, Massey, O’Neill, Faisal Rana, Wazir and Winkler. 
 
Chair (Councillor O’Neill in 2020/2021)  
Vice Chair (Councillor Cocks in 2020/2021)  
Opposition spokesperson (Councillor Winkler in 2020/2021)  
 
Area Forum 
 
The relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to attend their respective Ward Forum 
 
Other appointments  
 

1. Older Person’s Champion (Councillor Cocks appointed in 2020/2021) 
2. Younger Person’s champion (Councillor Massey appointed in 2020/2021) 
3. Rochdale Regeneration Group – Councillors Sultan Ali, Holly, O’Neill, Rana 

and Wazir (were appointed in 2020/2021); 
4. Rochdale Township Planning Panel - All members of the Rochdale North 

Township Committee to be invited to attend meetings - except those Members 
who have also been appointed to the Council’s Planning and Licensing 
Committee. 

 
Any amendments to the appointments be delegated to the Chair of the Rochdale North 
Township Committee to determine. 
 

Page 13



 

Report to Rochdale North Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 26 July 2021 
Portfolio Communities & Co-operation 
Report Author Sharron Worrall 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 
Rochdale North Township Funds Review 

 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2020/21 and 

provides options for the allocation of funds in 2021/22. 
  
1.2 Members are asked to approve Rochdale North Township Funds allocation 

to funding streams, terms and conditions, and agree delegation 
arrangements concerning funding decisions. 

 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 

North Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2020/21 
(Appendix 1 and 2). 

  
2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2020/21 

(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for funded projects (Appendix 
4). 

  
2.3 Members approve the allocation of Rochdale North Township Funds to 

funding streams in 2021/22 (Appendix 5). 
  
2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Rochdale North Township 

revenue and capital funds for 2021/22 (Appendix 6). 
  
2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Rochdale North 

Township Funds 2021/22 as detailed at 4.6 of this report. 
  
2.6 Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central 

revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January 
2022 to enable Members to spend/commit all Rochdale North Township 
Funds during 2021/22 financial year. 

 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 Management of the Rochdale North Township Fund is delegated to the 

Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

  

3.2 Rochdale North Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 

  
Page 14

Agenda Item 7



3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale North 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds. 

 

4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale North 

Township revenue and capital funds 2020/21 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2020/21 as agreed with Accountancy will be 
reported to the next scheduled funding committee. 

  
4.2 A review of Rochdale North Township revenue and capital funds has been 

undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2021/22. 

  
4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 

identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale 
North Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a 
difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities, 
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  
All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that 
they complete a project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the 
summaries of evaluation information received on projects which have been 
funded as detailed in Appendix 4. 

  
4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 

Funds 2020/21 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2021/22 as detailed in Appendix 5. 

  
4.5 Terms and conditions for Rochdale North Township revenue and capital 

funds have been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and 
conditions for 2021/22 (Appendix 6). 

  
4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Rochdale 

North Township Funds 2021/22 as follows: 
 
a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, 

Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson of Rochdale North Township 
Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the allocation of 
funds to all projects of £5,000 and under.  Any disputes concerning 
allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale North Township 
Delegated Sub Committee for decision. 

b) Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision. 

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale 
North Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all Members are 
aware of projects that have been approved. 

  

Page 15



  
4.7 Alternatives Considered 
  
 None.  In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to 

approve the allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and 
conditions. 

 

5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Rochdale North Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 

expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2020/21 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Rochdale North 
Township Funds to funding streams for financial year 2021/22 in Appendix 5. 

  

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Rochdale North Township Funds to ensure best use of available 
resources. 

  

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees. 

 

6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report. 
  
6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 

will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in 
line with the identified priorities. 

  
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities. 
 
There are no specific legal risks arising as a result of the proposals set out in 
this report. 

 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular 

monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  Any proposal for funding 
requires support from at least one Member.  All proposals will to be 
consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other 
stakeholders. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

None N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall 
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924802 

 

Page 16



            
            
              
          
            
            
          

 

          
 

                                                                  
                                                             
                                                                   

                                                    
                                                                             

 

APPENDIX 1 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21 

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £

Budget b/f 2019/20 
Base Budget 2020/21 
Income/Adjustments 2020/21 

28,102 
81,697 

5,683 
Total budget for 2020/21 115,482 
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 
Commitments 

54,215 
61,268 

Total Actual + Commitments 115,482 
Budget Remaining 2020/21   - 

 % Actual  % Actual + 
Spend Committed 

46.95% 100.00% 

Forecast Outturn 115,482 
Potential over/underspend -

Funds
 Budget 

b/f 2019/20 
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2020/21 

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

2020/21 
£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2020/21 

£ 

 Committed 
£ 

 Actuals 
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virement 
to Services 

£ 

 Total 
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2020/21
      £ 

Members Fund - 24,000 - 24,000 6,569 6,603 4,249 6,579 24,000 -
Ward Fund - 32,000 - 32,000 9,250 6,973 20 15,757 32,000 -
Projects Fund - 25,697 5,683 31,380 24,811 5,546 (4,269) 5,293 31,380 -
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2020/21) 28,102 - - 28,102 20,638 7,464 - - 28,102 -
Total 28,102 81,697 5,683 115,482 61,268 26,586 - 27,629 115,482 -

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 

P
age 17



         
       
                 
       
       
         
       
                 

       
                 

                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                    

                 

APPENDIX 2 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21 

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £

Budget b/f 2019/20 
Base Budget 2020/21 
Income/Adjustments 2020/21 

7,991 
78,160 

-
Total budget for 2020/21 86,151 
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 
Commitments 

84,282 
1,869 

Total Actual + Commitments 86,151 
Budget Remaining 2020/21 -

 % Actual  % Actual + 
Spend Committed 

97.83% 100.00% 

Forecast Outturn 86,151 
Potential over/underspend -

Funds
 Budget 

b/f 2019/20 
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2020/21 

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

2020/21 
£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2020/21 

£ 

 Committed 
£ 

 Actuals 
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virement 
to Services 

£ 

 Total 
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2020/21
      £ 

Capital Fund 7,991 78,160 - 86,151 1,869 5,029 - 79,253 86,151 -
Total 7,991 78,160 - 86,151 1,869 5,029 - 79,253 86,151 -

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  -

P
age 18



 

 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

  

 
  

 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2020/21 

REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Projects Fund £25,697 

Base Budget 

Adjustment 
£5,683 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Rochdale North Township. 

Funds were used to support 13 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 6 community projects and 7 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included a new conference table and chairs to replace the 
existing damaged and dated furniture to offer a comfortable, clean and safe environment for local community 
meetings, events and various classes; production of four short films for the BAME communities on mental health and 
nutrition topics that will offer a bilingual resource and reduce the risk of Covid-19 associated health outcomes; 
contribution towards the provision of Christmas trees for Rochdale North Township; angling equipment and organised 
events to offer fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all abilities to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the local community; introduction of no waiting at any time restrictions on Bradley Smithy Close cul de 
sac to address complaints about indiscriminate parking; supply and installation of new galvanized knee rail fence on 
Tell Street and Kathleen Street to prevent vehicles from accessing/parking on the grassed area; provision of two 
vehicle activated signs on Edenfield Road, Norden to give drivers sufficient notice and awareness of their speed 
before they enter Norden Village to improve road and public safety; installation of security mesh fencing at seven 
points of entry to the football pitches at Burton Park to address anti-social behaviour and make the pitches safe for 
players and club members; creation of a vegetable patch in Denehurst Park behind the walled garden at the side of 
Denehurst House for students from Redwood School to have the opportunity to cultivate plants, learn about food 
growing and healthy eating, enjoy nature and develop new skills for the Duke of Edinburgh programme; restoration of 
the British Legion Grave for soldiers who died in the First World War located in Rochdale Cemetery to improve the 
condition and visual appearance and safeguard the future of this memorial in both its social and historical context as 
the community’s chosen method of remembrance and important source of information for future generations; supply 
and installation of closed top litter bins on the corner of Ings Lane and Caldershaw Industrial Estate entrance and the 
bus stop at the end of Ings Lane to encourage the community to dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the area 
clean; deployable CCTV system for location in fly tipping hot spots to provide a high profile deterrent, quality footage 
to help identify and prosecute offenders, opportunities for media footage to be used to advertise incidents and locate 
witnesses and ultimately reduce fly tipping and littering. 

At year end unallocated balances from other revenue funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide 
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that had not been progressed due to lack of funds in those 
individual funding streams. 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund for Rochdale North Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £24,854 (subject to final outturn 
agreed with Accountancy). 

1 

P
age 19



 

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
  

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Ward Fund £32,000 

Base Budget 
Each Rochdale North Township Ward received £8,000 to provide a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a 
quick response and addressed local needs with Ward Councillors and the community identifying projects. 

This fund was used to support 25 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 15 community projects and 10 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included the electrical infrastructure and Christmas tree lights 
for the installation of a Christmas tree at Healey Triangle (opposite the Healey Hotel); a contribution to the installation 
of a DDA compliant access ramp and steps with handrail and textured flag paving to the ramp, landings and steps at 
the main entrance of Syke Community Base; supply and installation of a heritage style community noticeboard at the 
corner of Bentley Street and Shawclough Road, Rochdale to display literature about activities/events in Shawclough; 
provision of six Manchester style bollards at the ends of paths on Cronkeyshaw Common to deter parking/driving 
across the paths; contribution towards the deployable CCTV system for location in fly tipping hot spots to provide a 
high profile deterrent, quality footage to help identify and prosecute offenders, opportunities for media footage to be 
used to advertise incidents and locate witnesses and ultimately reduce fly tipping and littering; contribute to the supply 
and installation of motorbike inhibitors at Edenfield Road, Woodhouse Lane/Forsyth Lane and Knacks Lane, Norden 
plus fencing along Edenfield Road to restrict the movement of motorbikes and other motor vehicles across the 
network of rights of way in the area and the moorland whilst retaining the rights of way access for legitimate use; new 
salt bins on Whittaker Lane and Carfax Fold, Norden and Mons Avenue, Spotland as these roads become hazardous 
during wintry conditions; an interpretation panel in Taylor Park, Norden to promote the history of the local area and 
encourage the preservation of the natural environment; supply and installation of a concrete Christmas tree sleeve on 
Norden Recreation Ground to facilitate the placement of a cut Christmas tree with lights in this public green space for 
the enjoyment of the local community; illuminated festive features on Edenfield Road, Norden to enhance the 
Christmas lighting display in Norden; an interpretation panel at Moss Row Allotments, Norden to promote the history 
of the site and surrounding heritage areas, the activities at the allotment and encourage the preservation of the natural 
environment; provision of new litter bins on Mount Street, Clarke’s Lane, near St Edmund’s Church and Spotland 
Bridge to encourage the community to dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the area clean; a laptop for the co-
ordinator of the community groups usually hosted at Spotland Methodist Church to enable her to maintain contact 
throughout the Covid pandemic with members via zoom chats, creation of online videos (crafts, storytelling, songs, 
dance and cooking) and to produce newsletters for the local community who are unable or unwilling to use computers; 
enhance the Longfield Road entrance to the Stoney Hill Community Wildlife Area with the installation of a lectern style 
information board to explain the biodiversity of this green space, a bespoke cantilever panel to be fitted to close a gap 
between the kissing gate and fence to prevent off road motorbikes accessing the site and provision of seeds/bulbs to 
create attractive floral displays; installation of a concrete Christmas tree sleeve at the bottom of Spotland Road to 
facilitate the placement of a cut Christmas tree; creation of a wildflower area within the grounds of St Edmund’s 
Church to enhance the appearance of the church grounds with an attractive floral display and increase biodiversity 
with a nectar rich environment for bees, butterflies and other pollinating insects; restoration of the ornate heritage 
gates at the main entrance to Falinge Park. 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Fund for Rochdale North Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £32,000 with each Ward allocated 
£8,000. 

2 

P
age 20



 

 

  

 

   

  

  
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Members Fund £24,000 

Base Budget 
Each Rochdale North Township Councillor received £2,000 to allocate to projects within their Ward for the benefit of 
the local community and environment. 

Funds were used to support 26 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 11 community projects and15 
highways/environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included clearance and removal of vegetation and 
detritus from the alleyway at the rear of Duke Street, Rochdale to improve the environment and access for local 
residents and discourage fly tipping; new litter bins on Shawclough Road, junction of Wood Hey Grove/Dewhirst Road 
and Heights Lane to encourage the community to dispose of their litter responsibly and keep the area clean; 
installation of a bollard at the corner of Cross Lees and Syke Road to prevent inconsiderate parking on the footway 
and the obstruction of sightlines; contribution towards the provision of the electrical infrastructure and Christmas tree 
lights for the Christmas tree at Healey Triangle; supply and installation of a 25ft Christmas tree at Healey Triangle; 
new salt bin on Field View Lane, Norden as this road becomes hazardous during wintry conditions; contribution 
towards the interpretation panel at Moss Row Allotments, Norden to promote the history of the site and surrounding 
heritage areas, the activities at the allotment and encourage the preservation of the natural environment; a school 
uniform recycling initiative to help local families who are experiencing financial difficulties obtain pre-loved free school 
uniforms for their children and an opportunity to divert discarded clothing from ending up at a landfill site; supply and 
installation of a bench in a memorial garden in Falinge Park near the hall on an unused piece of land for a founder 
member of their group and volunteer in the community for over 30 years who passed away during the early months of 
the Covid pandemic; contribution towards the provision of two vehicle activated signs on Edenfield Road, Norden to 
give drivers sufficient notice and awareness of their speed before they enter Norden Village to improve road and 
public safety; provision of six new fruit trees and wildflower seeds for the Ings Lane Walking Trail to provide the local 
community with the opportunity to harvest fresh fruit for eating and enjoy observing wildlife attracted to the beautiful 
floral display; new play equipment for Spotland Methodist Church’s Toddler Fun Group that can be easily cleaned and 
sanitised to comply with Covid guidance; new salt bin on Greave Avenue, Spotland as this road becomes hazardous 
during wintry conditions; provision of Christmas boxes containing cakes, biscuits, scones, chocolates and quiz 
booklets for elderly and isolated residents to lift their spirits and provide the volunteers delivering the items with the 
opportunity to check the wellbeing of vulnerable residents and ensure they are receiving the support they need. 

Township Officers recommend the Members Fund for Rochdale North Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £24,000 for each Rochdale North 
Township Councillor to be allocated £2,000. 

3 

P
age 21



 

 

 
 

  

 

 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

  
  

  

 

 

 
 

CAPITAL FUNDS 
Fund Budget Review 
Capital Fund £78,160 

Base Budget 

£7,991 
b/f 2019/20 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and 
realise the Township priorities in 2020/21.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community. 

Funds were used to support 13 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 6 community projects and 7 highways/ 
environmental projects.  The variety of projects funded included construction of pedestrian dropped kerbs on Rooley 
Moor Road from Spotland Bridge to the junction with Ings Lane near the Co-op Store to improve accessibility for 
residents in the Rooley Moor area; provision of a new cricket pitch at Lenny Barn, Rochdale consisting of the supply 
and installation of a stone base suitable for cricket, batting shockpad, polypropylene turfed carpet and make good 
areas with soil and seed; supply and installation of motorbike inhibitors at Edenfield Road, Woodhouse Lane/Forsyth 
Lane and Knacks Lane, Norden plus fencing along Edenfield Road to restrict the movement of motorbikes and other 
motor vehicles across the network of rights of way in the area and the moorland whilst retaining the rights of way 
access for legitimate use; construction of ten pedestrian dropped kerbs on Paton Street to improve accessibility for 
residents in the Shawclough area; provision of the electrical infrastructure and Christmas tree lights for the Christmas 
tree at Healey Triangle; construction of a new pathway off Tintern Avenue, Shawclough involving the supply and 
installation of pcc edging kerbs and bituminous surface with type 1 MOT 20mm aggregate binder course and 6mm 
surface course to resolve drainage issues; introduction of No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions on Over Town Lane 
plus junction protection on Baitings Close and Wolstenholme Lane, Rochdale as inconsiderate double parking is 
causing access and sightline issues; replace existing temporary boulders and other measures that prevent unwanted 
access to the former TBA site, Rochdale (formerly known as Woodland Road) with kerbing and bollards to create 
permanent measures in the area to prevent vehicular access; improvement works to Heights Avenue steps and path 
and Waingap Rise steps to create routes that are safe and accessible for the public; electrical infrastructure and LED 
multi-coloured lights for the installation of a Christmas tree at Spotland Road Bridge plus dress/undress the lights on 
the Christmas tree; installation of a DDA compliant access ramp and steps with handrail and textured flag paving to 
the ramp, landings and steps at the main entrance of Syke Community Base; supply and installation of a heritage 
style community noticeboard at the corner of Bentley Street and Shawclough Road, Rochdale to display literature 
about activities/events in Shawclough. 

Committed funds of £1,869 will be carried forward into 2021/22. 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund for Rochdale North Township receives a base budget of £77,354 in 2021/22 (subject to final outturn 
agreed with Accountancy). 

4 

P
age 22



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

   

“We have a fantastic area where people can 
complete smaller projects without getting in 
the way of the large woodworking projects” 
Karen Hayday 
Director 
Hourglass Environment 

 

Recipient: Hourglass Environment (The Growth Project) 
Project: Growth Project Workshop Area 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,400 
 
The Growth Project works with people who have both mental and physical health issues to 
educate them in horticultural techniques, building and joinery skills that are transferable to 
both the home and the work place.  It improves the wellbeing of the client group making it 
less likely that they will need primary or secondary medical intervention.  A range of 
activities are delivered using green spaces, gardening, horticulture and plants to help 
individuals develop both physically and mentally.  Disused brown field sites are transformed 
into green productive spaces which add value to the local community making a safer, 
greener and a more pleasant place to live.  Kellett Street Allotments is a Council owned site 
with The Growth Project renting over an acre of land to deliver the activities.  The allotment 
site has been judged as “Outstanding” for the last six years by the Royal Horticultural 
Society’s ‘It’s Your Neighbourhood’ Award for North West in Bloom and participates in the 
National Garden Scheme. 
 
Development of the workshop area for craft skills provides more space for activities in the 
winter months.  Building materials were purchased to construct a structure with work 
benches and shelves to store equipment and the provision of craft materials offers service 
users a place to learn willow weaving, make wreathes, pot painting and creating small 
decorations. 

Page 23



 

 

   

 
The craft skills workshop was constructed in a nineteenth century signal box design to 
complement the ‘Woodland Green Wood’ working station and the structure was placed on 
stilts as the raised position made it more flood resistant (the allotment site was flooded again 
in January 2020).  Service users designed and carried out all the work with many of the less 
able involved in sanding and painting so it was a truly inclusive project. 

Page 24



   

“We should start seeing an improvement in 
the fish catches and if so, be able to hold 
some taster days for the wider 
community…and an increase in wildlife 
around the pond” 
Nigel Ashworth 
Secretary 
Whitworth Valley Angling Society 

 
Recipient: Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management in partnership with 

Whitworth Valley Angling Society 
Project: The Refuge 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £3,750 
 
Whitworth Valley Angling Society promotes angling for pleasure or competition and 
enjoyment of the countryside at their waters.  The pond in Broadley Wood set in Healey Dell 
Nature Reserve is leased by the Society from Rochdale Borough Council and it is situated on 
Station Road, after the start onto the cobbled section to Prickshaw Village.  Heavy predation 
by cormorants, goosander and mink at the pond had devastated the fishing, with only the 
larger fish now being caught rendering the pond unable to sustain itself. 
 
The project delivered in partnership with Rochdale Council’s Parks and Countryside Rangers 
(Environmental Management) aided by the Green Volunteer Scheme created a safe haven 
for fish.  A series of linked floating islands in the centre of the ponds that are pre-planted 
provide anti-predator fish/wildfowl refuges, a natural food larder for fish, biological filters for 
the pond and reduce algae.  These low maintenance islands enhance the open waterscape 
of the pond and encourage wildlife diversity.  Similar projects have been carried out by the 
Rangers at Syke (pond on the Common), Queens Park and Rhodes Lodges resulting in 
dramatic improvements in the stocks of smaller fish and other wildlife including ducks, 
moorhens, dragonflies and other invertebrates.  The refuge aims to increase the fish stocks 
through habitat improvement and investment in fish stocks so that Broadley Wood pond can 
once again be used for free fishing taster days hosted by Whitworth Valley Angling Society to 
encourage new anglers into the sport. 

Page 25



 

    

“??” 
?? 

“I have had really positive feedback from 
those who have used and benefited from 
this project.  Being able to provide uniforms 
during lockdown when shops were not 
open or hard to access for some families” 
Leonie O’Donoghue 
Church and Community Lay Worker 
Spotland Methodist Church 

 
Recipient: Spotland Methodist Church 
Project: Uniforms for all 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £663.76 
 
Spotland Methodist Church’s community volunteers worked in partnership with Cutgate Co-
op store to deliver a school uniform recycling initiative to help local families who are 
experiencing financial difficulties obtain pre-loved free school uniforms for their children and 
an opportunity to divert discarded clothing from ending up at a landfill site. 
 
Staff at Cutgate Co-op store collected donations of uniforms from the public and gave them 
to volunteers from Spotland Methodist Church to sort, arrange the laundering of the clothing, 
store and distribute to children identified by local schools’ pastoral support teams as in need 
of uniforms in the Spotland & Falinge Ward.  Spotland Library has joined the initiative and it 
is now also a drop off point for uniforms.  The provision of clothes rails,  
hangers, shoe rack, storage boxes and a clothes  
steamer enabled the volunteers to effectively  
process the school uniforms received after the  
items had been cleaned at a local laundrette.   
The initiative ensures every local child has an  
opportunity to own a smart school uniform. 

Page 26



       

“This five year project has been the 
complete transformation of the club to a 
modern high standard facility that going 
forward will provide excellent sporting and 
leisure for the whole community” 
Andy Parton 
Treasurer 
Rochdale Sports Club 

 
Recipient: Rochdale Sports Club 
Project: Rochdale Sports Club Refurbishment 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £6,525 
 
Rochdale Sports Club (originally Rochdale Cricket Lacrosse and Squash Club) moved to the 
site of the former Redbrook School in 2016 as part of its five year development plan to 
expand the sports offer to the local community.  The club has vibrant senior and junior 
sections, strongly supported by volunteers and it benefits from a multicultural membership.  
Two secondary and nine primary schools are located within walking distance of the club and 
they encourage participation in sports on a regular basis from an early age. 
 
Refurbishment of the Rochdale Sports Club’s grounds and buildings has involved upgrading 
the upstairs function room and toilets, fire/security alarms and CCTV, cricket nets/lacrosse 
training area, double changing rooms and showers, floors/walls of two squash courts and 
provision of a 120m security fencing to the site entrance.  A grant of £50,000 was awarded to 
Rochdale Sports Club from Sports England and £56,775 from Viridor Environmental Credits 
in addition to the grant received from Rochdale North Township to enable the club to 
undertake the improvements and realised their aspirations to create a premier venue for 
sports provision. 

Page 27



       

“The hedgerow is adjacent to a public 
footpath where people can see it and have 
already commented on the birdlife nesting 
in the hedge” 
Christine McHugh 
Committee member 
Moss Row Community Allotments 
Society 

 
Recipient: Moss Row Community Allotment Society 
Project: Moss Row Allotments hedge laying 
Fund: Ward Fund 
Awarded: £600 
 
Moss Row Allotments are situated between Moss Row and Shepherd Street, Norden on land 
owned by Rochdale Borough Council and managed by Moss Row Community Allotment 
Society since 2006.  The site comprises 24 plots of varying sizes, wildlife area and pond, and 
the society welcomes visits by school groups, works with Green Volunteers, hosts open days 
and participates in Rochdale in Bloom activities. 
 
A variety of hedging whips were planted around the perimeter of the allotment site to thicken 
the hedge when they mature to prevent unwanted animals and intruders from accessing the 
site.  A specialist contractor was engaged to lay the hedge along the back boundary fence 
and a small section at the front of the allotment site.  Allotment plot holders and the wider 
community were given the opportunity to participate in dead hedging to replenish the hedges 
in the adjacent Moss Row woodland and dispose of the brash in an environmentally friendly 
way.  This natural boundary that will eventually replace the existing metal fencing offers 
native wildlife a refuge, a source of food and corridors along which they can move through 
the landscape. 

Page 28



 

 

   

 

Recipient: Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management 
Project: Lenny Barn Cricket Pitch 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £8,107 
 
Lenny Barn fields adjacent to Falinge Park High School was gifted to the people of Rochdale 
by the Royd’s family with a covenant that specifies the land is to be used for recreation.  An 
artificial cricket pitch on Lenny Barn was no longer fit for purpose with  
significant damage and a change in north/south orientation of the pitch  
was required in relation to the sun to ensure it was in accordance with  
England Cricket Board guidelines. 
 
The new cricket pitch installed on Lenny Barn is constructed with a  
stone base suitable for cricket, a batting shock pad and polypropylene  
turfed carpet.  Areas of the land that have been exposed after the change 
in orientation of the pitch have been made good with soil and seed. 
 
The popular sport of cricket can once again be played by the local  
community on Lenny Barn offering participants the opportunity to  
enjoy a physical social team sport in a safe outdoor environment. 

Page 29



   

 
Project: British Legion Memorial Renovation 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,033.92 
 
Restoration of the British Legion Grave for soldiers who died between 1914 and 1918 in the 
First World War located in Rochdale Cemetery involved commissioning a local experienced 
mason to clean the memorial, check/reset loose kerbing and repaint lettering.  The works 
have improved the condition and visual appearance of the British Legion Grave and 
safeguards the future of this memorial in both its social and historical context as the 
community’s chosen method of remembrance and important source of information for future 
generations. 

Page 30



   

Page 31



   

“A safer more accessible pedestrian route 
to encourage more local residents to use 
this pleasant green space” 
Bob Bevan 
Parks & Countyside Ranger 
Rochdale Borough Council 

 
Recipient: Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management 
Project: Caldershaw Road Play Area Path 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £2,656.50 
 
A gravel path was constructed to link Caldershaw Road playground into Caldershaw Brook 
linear greenway as local residents had created a desire line path over a field that was muddy 
and unsafe in wet weather conditions.  This new path offers the community an accessible 
pedestrian route to local schools and shops plus encourages more residents to use this 
green space. 

Page 32



 

 

 

 

    “It was wonderful to see how science can 
bring so many under represented families 
into a community setting and enthuse and 
inspire them to want to seek more” 
Mohammed Rahman 
Lead Organiser 
Rochdale Science Initiative CIC 

 
Recipient: Rochdale Science Initiative CIC 
Project: Rochdale Science Extravaganza 2020 
Fund: Members Fund 
Awarded: £1,211 
 
Rochdale Science Initiative CIC aims to create inclusive science engagement opportunities 
with events and activities to inspire, harness and nurture a new generation of science 
enthusiasts and scientists from local families of different cultures or the economically 
marginised.  Working in partnership with other communities, educational institutions, 
professional scientists, science communicators and science enthusiasts, Rochdale Science 
Initiative CIC strives to educate with a showcase for the curious-minded with exciting and 
interesting presentations. 
 
On Sunday 15 March 2020 Rochdale Science Extravaganza celebrated science in action 
with Zoologists, Palaeontologists, Geologists, Physicists and Rochdale Science Initiative’s 
own enthusiasts providing entertainment with a variety of hands on activities and interactive 
demonstrations.  Exhibitions, demonstrations and presentations to educate and inspire the 
local community were a theatrical science show, exotic live animal zoo exhibition, 
planetarium to wonder at the night sky, experiments conducted inside a mobile science lab 
and Dippy Education Officers provided an opportunity to learn more about the famous 
Diplodocus that was visiting Rochdale. 

Page 33



 

 

 

   
 

Media coverage on Covid-19 prior to the event prompted Rochdale Science Initiative CIC to 
seek advice and guidance from Government, Public Health England and Rochdale Borough 
Council sources before a decision was made to implement hygiene measures to enable the 
event to go ahead safely.  The situation was kept under constant review by the Rochdale 
Science Initiative organisers and it did become necessary to cancel the ‘The ‘Bubble 
Science Show’ planned for the event and replace it with a fun theatrical science show. 
 
Rochdale Science Extravaganza each year endeavours to boost the diversity and inclusivity 
of science with their inspirational exhibitions and presentations to engage the under-
represented into science. 

Page 34



   

“We now have a water set in the middle of a 
nature reserve that no matter what your 
physical limitations or requirements you can 
now sit on a safe secure peg either on your 
own or with someone and enjoy some of the 
best angling in Rochdale” 
Barry Watkins 
Treasurer 
Rochdale Walton Angling Society 

 
Recipient: Rochdale Walton Angling Society 
Project: Healey Dell accessibility for all 
Fund: Capital Fund 
Awarded: £3,720 
 
Rochdale Walton Angling Society owns Healey Dell lodge situated within a nature reserve on 
the boundary with Rochdale and Whitworth.  This well-established water of approximately 
one acre is well stocked with a mixture of species and sizes of fish to cater for beginners and 
experienced anglers.  The angling society has an open membership that encourages 
participation through annual events and taster days at their waters in Healey Dell, Syke.  
Rochdale Armed Forces Veterans’ Breakfast Club formed a partnership with Rochdale 
Walton Angling Society to offer veterans and serving personnel the opportunity to participate 
in angling sessions to support rehabilitation of physical injuries and mental health.  A grant 
from the Rochdale Council’s Strengthening Communities and Place Fund to support the 
Armed Forces angling initiative has enabled the society to acquire a vandal proof cabin to be 
used as a welfare unit to be placed on site.  The welfare unit will provide members with 
access to toilets and a washroom, meeting place/recreational area and storage facilities.  
The provision of pegs for the welfare unit make the Healey Dell waters accessible to 
everyone.  Decking and a seating area at the front of the welfare unit facilitate weekly meets 
at the waters for veterans, dependants and carers and support the Rochdale Armed Forces 
Veterans’ Breakfast Club’s aim of social inclusion and rehabilitation through angling.  The 
five pegs constructed to the British Disabled Angling Association specifications at the Healey 
Dell waters are suitable for wheelchair users with two of the pegs twice the standard width to 
allow family groups, anglers with carers or anglers who choose to fish together. 

Page 35



 

 

 

      

 

Recipient: Centre of Wellbeing, Training and Culture 
Project: Managing healthier lifestyle 
Fund: Projects Fund 
Awarded: £1,981.68 
 
Centre of Wellbeing, Training and Culture (CWTC) aims to raise awareness of health 
inequalities and offers support across all communities with the provision of training, 
education and arts to enrich the quality of life of the diverse, vulnerable and disadvantaged 
communities of Rochdale.  The training centre and media channel deliver high quality 
services to inspire and empower vulnerable individuals in a dignified manner to live a 
healthier lifestyle to enhance their mental and physical wellbeing.  The free to access media 
channel means individuals can obtain vital health information without the need to visit the 
centre – an imperative need during the Covid pandemic.  CWTC provide accredited level 2 
courses in Understanding Dementia, Supporting Carers, Diabetes and Mental Health for 
staff, carers and community.  Also the centre organises events for the diverse community to 
increase awareness in dementia and wellbeing plus cultural day trips for their elderly 
beneficiaries to places of interest in the North West.  The CWTC Wellbeing Café provides 
weekly reminiscence, arts for mental health, poetry, music, information and guidance from 
health and social care services.  In order to reach a wider audience, CWTC established CW 
TV, an online Community TV Channel to support community organisations and services by 
providing health information videos that are resourced in-house and translated into Urdu.  To 
support younger people, CWTC have created work placement referrals by Job Centre Plus, 
Education Business Solution and Oldham Sixth Form Academy to provide students with 
experience in office, communication and media skills.  An extensive list of freelance tutors 
and sessional workers are employed on a project basis to deliver sessions to develop 
participants’ creativity, confidence, self-esteem and inter-personal skills.  CWTC have 
regular volunteers through work placements from referral agencies who assist in activities 
and admin support to enhance their knowledge, skills and employability. 

…enabled CWTC to develop unique 
accessible online resources needed to 
support our diverse communities and 
services.  This will help increase our 
engagement with other target groups, 
attract new service users and help 
continue to build a sustainable community 
resource” 
Mohammed Sarwar 
Chief Executive, Centre of Wellbeing, 
Training and Culture 

Page 36



      

   

 

CWTC during the Covid pandemic were unable to deliver their weekly activities to their 
service users and decided to engage with both their existing users and reach new audiences 
through online platforms and social media.  Information videos have been produced aimed at 
BAME communities by ensuring guidance is culturally appropriate and available in both Urdu 
and English.  The educational content of the information videos was created to mitigate 
fears, improve understanding, increase resilience and encourage improved uptake of vital 
prevention services.  The mental health and nutrition topics covered in these information 
videos aim to help to reduce the burden on health services by providing a bilingual resource 
and reduce the risk of adverse Covid-19 associated health outcomes.  Four short films were 
produced in Urdu and English languages on the topics of family resilience, nutrition (healthy 
diet and lifestyle for ethnic minority people), healthy lifestyle and arts for mental health.  The 
films were promoted to existing and new audiences through their various social marketing 
platforms and uploaded to CWTC’s YouTube channel.  The films will be shown at CWTC 
Wellbeing Café once the Covid restrictions permit the centre to open. 

Family Resilience | Video Produced by CWTC | CWTV Online ‐ YouTube 

Film about family resilience and the importance of having people you feel close to around you 
to support you in this pandemic and general life.  Family not only being blood relatives.  
Explains that you can’t always control what happens to you but you can control how you 
respond to the situation and to always keep a positive mind set, includes a 15 step 
programme to overcome hardships that occur.  Describes how you can learn to interact with 
your family and how to not let your anger or frustration make you forget how important they 
are to you. 

Page 37



   

Nutrition | Healthy Diet and Lifestyle for Ethnic Minority People | CWTC | CWTV Online ‐ YouTube 

Film about the importance of a healthy diet and nutrition, as well as a healthy, active lifestyle. 
Specifies how minority ethnics have a higher risk of developing health conditions due to poor 
health and how to cater/alter your diet and lifestyle to help you achieve a healthier life. 

Page 38



   

Healthy Lifestyle | CWTC | CWTV Online ‐ YouTube 

Film about a healthy and active lifestyle and how Covid-19 could be affecting that with 
restrictions.  Gives examples of home workouts that can be done and emphasises keeping 
active and how that can positively impact your physical and mental life. 

Page 39



 

Arts for Mental Health | CWTC | CWTV Online ‐ YouTube 

Film about mental health and what contributes to it, eg life experiences or family genetics, 
etc.  Explains how engaging in art can be beneficial to one’s mental health and how the 
facilities they offer at CWTC can also help bring communities together, especially during 
Covid-19. 

Page 40



     

APPENDIX 5 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2021/22 

REVENUE FUNDS 2021/22 = £142,121 

Fund b/f 2020/21 Base Budget Income/ 
Adjustments 

Total Budget 
2021/22 Committed Budget Available 

2021/22 Notes 

REVENUE FUNDS 
Projects Fund £0 £24,854 £0 £24,854 £0 £24,854 Fund to resource larger revenue and Rochdale Township 

wide projects that meet the Township's priorities.  Base 
budget of £24,854. 

Members Fund £0 £24,000 £0 £24,000 £0 £24,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local 
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 
environment.  Base budget of £24,000 will provide each 
Rochdale North Township Councillor with £2,000 to allocate 
to revenue projects within their Ward. 

Ward Fund £0 £32,000 £0 £32,000 £0 £32,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local 
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and 
environment.  Base budget of £32,000 will provide each 
Rochdale North Township Ward with £8,000 to allocate to 
projects within their Ward. 

Township Allocated 
Funds 

£61,267 £0 £0 £61,267 £61,267 £0 Brought forward budget of £61,267 for pre 2021/22 approved 
projects. 

TOTAL £61,267 £80,854 £0 £142,121 

CAPITAL FUNDS 2021/22 = £79,223 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund b/f 2020/21 Base Budget Income/ 
Adjustments 

Total Budget 
2021/22 Committed Budget Available 

2021/22 Notes 

Capital Fund £1,869 £77,354 £0 £79,223 £1,869 £77,354 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the 
Township priorities.  Base budget of £77,354 

TOTAL £1,869 £77,354 £0 £79,223 

Page 1 of 1 

P
age 41



 
 

               
 

 

  

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
   

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

  

   

  

  

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 APPENDIX 6 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE NNOORRTTHH TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP FFUUNNDD TTEERRMMSS AANNDD CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS 22002211//2222 

Rochdale North Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by 
harmonious and diverse communities.  We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial 
heritage; to build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region.  Efforts to increase 
community cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must 
permeate all activities. 

1. Purpose of the fund 

Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit 
projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale North Township Funds.  All projects must 
show how they will address the Rochdale North Township priorities of: 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives. We will enable 
communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 
work and invest. 

 Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

2. Projects must be 

a) Within the powers of the Council. 

b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

c) Benefit the Township community. 

d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan. 

e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale North Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the 
project/grant and justify its significance to the Township’s priorities. 

3. Who may apply? 

a) Council Services. 

b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc). 

c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account. 

4. Activities that can be funded 

a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement. 

b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping. 

c) Promoting community cohesion. 

d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.  

e) Promoting healthy living. 

1 Form RT02A 
Page 42



 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

f) Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation. 

g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities. 

h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these. 

i) Promoting Rochdale’s heritage. 

j) Increasing recycling and waste minimisation. 

k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency 
(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc). 

5. Items that can be funded 

a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV. 

b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment. 

c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township. 

d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties. 

f) Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative. 

h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme. 

6. Activities that may not be funded 

a) Activities already started before funding is awarded. 

b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 
services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

c) Parties. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Projects to benefit individuals. 

f) Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.  

g) Repairing unadopted roads. 

h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 
functions. 

i) Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events. 

j) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds 

a) Alcoholic drinks. 

b) Motor vehicles. 

c) Items bought before Township has given written approval. 

d) Insurance. 

2 Form RT02A 
Page 43



 
 
 

 

 

 
  

 
 

  

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 
 

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant 

a) To submit applications on the correct form. 

b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and 
objectives in a cost-effective way. 

c) To source items to be purchased with the grant from local suppliers and services whenever possible to 
support the local economy. 

d) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use must be 
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

e) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 
breakdown of expenditure. 

f) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion. 

g) Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy 
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to the Rochdale Township Office 
within one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in 
restrictions being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the 
grant monies. 

h) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue 
and Customs. 

i) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health 
and safety) and insurance relating to their project/event are in place. 

j) Infection prevention and controls relating to the project/event are in place and comply with the 
Government and Public Health guidelines. 

k) To have policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable adults when 
applying for a project to work with such people. 

l) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required. 

m) To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue 
funding after the agreed finishing date. 

n) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items 
acquired with the grant. 

9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects 

a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15. 

b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation. 

c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the 
breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery. 

10. Responsibilities of Township Office 

a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed. 

3 Form RT02A 
Page 44



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager 

a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a 
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 
not been re-elected. 

12. Limitations 

a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 
by Township Funds. 

b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of 
the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

13. Application and Decision Making Process 

a) Council Member or Officer submits a project proposal form to the Township Office. 

b) Township Office will send the application form to the group or invite a project brief from the service. 

c) Township Office checks the application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the 
fund. 

d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application 
forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to 
supply additional information. 

e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale North Township 
Delegated Sub Committee for decision. 

f) Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less. 

g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek 
their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project. 

h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale North Township 
Delegated Sub Committee for decision. 

i) Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee 
decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision. 

j) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

14. Delegated Decision Making Process 

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition 
Spokesperson of Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee, may decide on all projects for 
£5,000 or less. 

b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days.  A nil response is 
considered a response in support of the application. 

4 Form RT02A 
Page 45



 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

  
   

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form. 

d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of 
their application. 

e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 

f) Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision: 

i. Project reference number. 

ii. Description of project. 

iii. Officer decision. 

iv. Date of decision. 

v. Reasons for decision. 

vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson with dates. 

vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision. 

15. Commissioning Process 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service Provider to ensure 
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 
maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee prior 
to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes. 

d) Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of 
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 
with the Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

e) Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the 
Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for 
consideration by the Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee.  The Committee may 
decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if 
the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 
Fund. 

f) The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the 
cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the 
project as agreed.  Stage payments may be agreed. 

g) The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale North 
Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold funds 
(or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise 
with the Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

j) Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

5 Form RT02A 
Page 46



 

Report to Rochdale North Township  Delegated Sub Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 26 July 2021 
Portfolio Communities & Co-operation 
Report Author Sharron Worrall 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22 
 

 

1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 

and balances of Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22 and enable the 
allocation of funds to proposed projects. 

 

2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale 

North Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2. 
 
2.2 Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in 

Appendix 3. 
 
2.3 Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to 

proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4. 
 
2.4 Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed 

proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility 
for the Rochdale North Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any 
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4). 

 
2.5 The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice 

Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee, to be given delegated 
authority to make decisions on any deferred projects. 

 

3. Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 Management of the Rochdale North Township Fund is delegated to the 

Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee. 
 
3.2 Rochdale North Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 

Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



3.3 To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale North 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds. 

 

4. Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of 

Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22 in Appendix 1 and 2.  
Actual/committed spend for revenue funds is 43.11% and capital funds is 
2.36%. 

 
4.2 Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale North 

Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of the 
projects that have been agreed within their Ward.  Members are asked to note 
the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last 
committee meeting in Appendix 3. 

 
4.3 Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale North Township 

Funds 2021/22.  Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or 
defer the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects 
listed in Appendix 4. 

 
4.4 To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2021/22, Members 

are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any 
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation 
with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee. 

 
4.5 Alternatives Considered 
 

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate. 

 

5. Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Rochdale North Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 

expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2021/22 in 
Appendix 1 and 2. 

 
5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 

of the Rochdale North Township Fund to ensure best use of available 
resources. 

 
5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 

reports will be presented to future committees. 
 

6. Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be 

identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4. 
 

Page 48



6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line 
with the identified priorities. 

 
6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 

meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities. 

 
6.4 Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the 

Council has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of 
any changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to 
provide them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with 
them and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.  
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a 
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their 
obligations under the Compact. 

 

7. Consultation 

 
7.1 Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular 

monitoring reports about the use of the funds.  Any proposal for funding 
requires support from at least one Member.  All proposals will to be consulted 
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

None N/A 

 
 

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall Tel: 01706 924802 
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 49



            
            
                      
          
            
            
            
            

          
                      

                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                            

      

APPENDIX 1 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2021/22 

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £

Budget b/f 2020/21 
Base Budget 2021/22 
Income/Adjustments 2021/22 

61,267 
80,854 

-
Total budget for 2021/22 142,121 
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 
Commitments 

15,103 
46,163 

Total Actual + Commitments 61,267 
Budget Remaining 2021/22 80,854 

 % Actual  % Actual + 
Spend Committed 

10.63% 43.11% 

Forecast Outturn 142,121 
Potential over/underspend -

Funds
 Budget 

b/f 2020/21 
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

2021/22 
£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 Committed 
£ 

 Actuals 
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virement 
to Services 

£ 

 Total 
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2021/22
      £ 

Members Fund - 24,000 - 24,000 - - - - - 24,000 
Ward Fund - 32,000 - 32,000 - - - - - 32,000 
Projects Fund - 24,854 - 24,854 - - - - - 24,854 
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2021/22) 61,267 - - 61,267 46,163 3,209 - 11,894 61,267 - 
Total 61,267 80,854 - 142,121 46,163 3,209 - 11,894 61,267 80,854

 REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE 24,854 

P
age 50



         
       
                 
       
                 
         
         
       

       
                 

                                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                               

       

APPENDIX 2 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2021/22 

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £

Budget b/f 2020/21 
Base Budget 2021/22 
Income/Adjustments 2021/22 

1,869 
77,354 

-
Total budget for 2021/22 79,223 
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals 
Commitments 

-
1,869 

Total Actual + Commitments 1,869 
Budget Remaining 2021/22 77,354 

 % Actual  % Actual + 
Spend Committed 
0.00% 2.36% 

Forecast Outturn 79,223 
Potential over/underspend -

Funds
 Budget 

b/f 2020/21 
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 Income/ 
Adjustments 

2021/22 
£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 Committed 
£ 

 Actuals 
£ 

 Virement 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virement 
to Services 

£ 

 Total 
£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2021/22
      £ 

Capital Fund 1,869 77,354 - 79,223 1,869 - - - 1,869 77,354 
Total 1,869 77,354 - 79,223 1,869 - - - 1,869 77,354

  CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE  77,354 

P
age 51



APPENDIX 3 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION 

Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson 
of Rochdale North Township Delegated Sub Committee 

Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount Delegated Decision 
Date Decision 

M/32/20 Wood Hey 
Grove/Dewhirst Road 
Junction Litter Bin 

Supply and installation of a closed top litter bin at Wood Hey 
Grove/Dewhirst Road Junction, Rochdale.  The provision of a bin 
at this location will encourage the community to dispose of their 
litter responsibly and keep the area clean. 

Healey £376.20 10 March 2021 Awarded £376.20 
from Members 
Fund 

M/33/20 Cross Lees/Syke Road 
Corner Bollard 

Supply and installation of a bollard at the junction of Cross 
Lees/Syke Road outside 73 Syke Road, Rochdale to prevent 
inconsiderate parking on the footway and the obstruction of 
sightlines. 

Healey £205 15 March 2021 Awarded £205 from 
Members Fund 

M/44/20 Ings Lane Walking 
Trail Fruit Trees and 
Wildflowers 

An ‘Urban Moorland’ Garden Walking Trail on Lenny Barn Trust 
land, off Ings Lane, Spotland, Rochdale was created in 2018 to 
provide the local community with a 200 metre long accessible path 
with distance markers to encourage exercise and information 
boards along the route contain advice about walking exercises.  
This ‘moorland’ garden walk in an urban area provides a unique 
opportunity for the local community to experience outdoor exercise 
in a safe environment.  The provision of six new fruit trees and 
wildflower seeds will provide the local community with the 
opportunity to harvest fresh fruit for eating and enjoy observing 
wildlife attracted to the beautiful floral display. 

Spotland & 
Falinge 

£220 25 March 2021 Awarded £220 from 
Members Fund 

Page 1 of 2 

P
age 52



Ref No. Name of Project Project Description Ward Amount Delegated Decision 
Date Decision 

RP/12/20 Tackling Minds Tackling Minds CIC organise angling events to improve the health 
and wellbeing of the local community with a focus on increasing 
participation from people with mental health, addiction and 
recovery issues, experiencing social deprivation, disabilities and 
long-term health conditions.  The Angling Trust Get Fishing Award 
is incorporated into the Tackling Minds events that offer fun, 
friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all 
abilities.  Every angler that completes the Get Fishing Award will 
receive their very own introductory start-up kit and they will be kept 
engaged with informal and formal competitions, target species or a 
style of fishing and the opportunity to fish at numerous venues.  
Tackling Minds plan to promote their services with the creation of a 
web site, advertising on social media, information pamphlets and 
establish their own merchandise line to generate funds to support 
their community projects. 

Rochdale 
Township 

£2,175.54 28 April 2021 Awarded £2,175.54 
from Projects Fund 

Page 2 of 2 

P
age 53



APPENDIX 4 

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/22 

Projects Fund available for allocation = £24,854 

Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met Request Originator Cost 

RP/02/21 Development and Learning Support Rochdale 
Township 

Yes 
People 

Al-Abbas Institute £2,083.27 

Project Description Al-Abbas Institute to deliver five classes/workshops per week (8 hours each week for 43 weeks) to BAME children and young people on core curriculum 
subjects and information to deter involvement in criminal and anti-social behaviour and awareness about all forms of crime and exploitation.  In addition, two 
seminars per week will be delivered to provide advice, guidance and support on education matters and services available for BAME communities and one 
seminar per week will provide advice on health and mental wellbeing support in the context of education for BAME children, young people and their parents.   
Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as the project will benefit participants from wards in both Townships.  
(Application form at Appendix 4A) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

RP/03/21 Inspired by Faith & Science Central 
Rochdale 

Yes 
People 

Rochdale Science 
Initiative CIC 

£989.60 

Project Description Rochdale Science Initiative CIC propose to work in partnership with researchers from various Scientific Technological Engineering and Mathematical 
(STEM) disciplines and local Islamic educators to design a course of learning for approximately 30 young people (aged 11+).  Participants will explore the 
scientific elements and the significance of Quranic verses, learn about Muslim scientists and inventions and research the nutritious values of foods 
mentioned in the Holy Quran.  Poster board presentations will be created on these topics that will capture the participants' learning and they will be 
showcased at a community science fair.  Researchers and STEM based undergraduate and postgraduate students will deliver hands on activities, displays 
and experimental demonstrations on the theme of Islam and science at the fair.  Rochdale Science Initiative CIC hope the project will promote pride in 
Muslim heritage, intercultural dialogue, social cohesion and mutual respect.  (Application form at Appendix 4B) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

RP/04/21 New Pioneers Project Central 
Rochdale 

Yes 
People 

Your Trust £3,076 

Project Description Your Trust (formerly Link4Life) propose to work in partnership with the Career Brokers Team to engage the new pioneers into a variety of activities to 
improve their health and wellbeing.  Residents from the high rise flats in Central Rochdale who are either on low income or benefits will be the focus of this 
project (Your Trust are currently in contact with 38 residents and 10 residents from Sanctuary Trust have been signposted by Making Space).  Opportunities 
will be provided for local people to experience activity sessions in a safe, local venue under the supervision of experienced fitness instructors/coaches.  
Your Trust will host an event and deliver taster sessions to encourage participation in a variety of sports and social activities that can accommodate all 
abilities and ages.  (Project brief at Appendix 4C) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

Temporary changes to government guidelines. 

Page 1 of 4 

P
age 54



Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met Request Originator Cost 

RP/05/21 Community engagement cultural night Rochdale 
Township 

Yes 
People 

Pakistani & Kashmiri 
Community 
Association 

£3,393.14 

Project Description Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association propose to organise a Pakistan Independence Day event on 14 August 2021 to celebrate Pakistani culture, its 
many faiths and bring existing, new and emerging communities together.  The event will celebrate those from a Pakistani heritage and how they chose to 
settle all over Britain in towns like Rochdale and also a showcase of the cultures, languages and traditions.  Communities will have an opportunity to come 
together to celebrate Rochdale's diversity and the event will foster better community cohesion between different communities, generations, faiths and 
cultures.  Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as a Rochdale Township wide event.  (Application form at 
Appendix 4D) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

RP/06/21 Cronkeyshaw Common community sensory and herb garden Healey Yes 
Place 

Friends of Syke & 
Cronkeyshaw 
Ward Councillors 

£2,229.88 

Project Description Create a sensory and herb garden on Cronkeyshaw Common at the old spiral garden to be managed and maintained by the Friends of Syke and 
Cronkeyshaw under a service level agreement with Rochdale Council.  Friends of Syke and Cronkeyshaw propose to enhance Cronkeyshaw Common and 
the area around Joy Street Greenway with woodland plants and bulbs.  Activities of the Friends of group will be promoted on social media to encourage 
community involvement in the environmental improvement of the area.  (Project brief at Appendix 4E) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

Capital Fund available for allocation = £77,354 

Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met Request Originator Cost 

TC/04/21 Spotland Road and Clement Royds Street Junction Improvement Spotland & 
Falinge 

Yes 
Place 

Councillor Faisal 
Rana 

£11,509 

Project Description Extension of existing buildouts along Spotland Road, Rochdale by approximately 5 metres on all sides and extend the existing No Waiting At Any Time 
restrictions to increase inter-visibility for both pedestrians and vehicles at the junction of Spotland Road and Clement Royds Street, reduce the risk of 
collisions and improve road safety at this location.  (Project brief and plan at Appendix 4F) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development 
resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward 
Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any 
objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate 
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising and there will be no 
need to divert any existing services in the highway. 

Page 2 of 4 

P
age 55



  

Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met Request Originator Cost 

TC/05/21 Broadfield Park Feature Lighting Rochdale 
Township 

Yes 
Place 

Councillor O'Neill £4,157.47 

Project Description Supply and installation of feature multi-coloured programmable lighting adjacent to Rochdale Town Hall to light up the trees and slopes in Broadfield Park to 
enhance the night time environment in the centre of Rochdale.  A floodlight using Colour Reach LED will be attached to existing heavy duty street lighting 
column 13 The Esplanade. Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as this project relates to a Rochdale Town 
Centre location.  (Project brief at Appendix 4G) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

Availability and increase unit costs of specified equipment.  Limited access to street lighting equipment due to ongoing refurbishment work on the Rochdale 
Town Square project. 

TC/06/21 Caldershaw Brook area path and footbridge Spotland & 
Falinge 

Yes 
Place 

Councillor Faisal 
Rana 

£5,610 

Project Description Construction of a new path from the Caldershaw Road Playground through Caldershaw Brook linear greenway to Meadow View and installation of a new 
wooden footbridge over the brook to improve accessibility and safety for the local community who use this route.  The existing desire line path is muddy and 
unsafe in wet weather conditions and the brook currently can only be crossed by using stepping stones or jumping over when the water level is low.  This 
new path and footbridge will link the existing gravel path network and provide a looped walking route to encourage more residents to use this green space 
and an accessible pedestrian route to local schools.  (Project brief at Appendix 4H) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

TC/07/21 Joan Turner Community Memorial Orchard & Wildflower Area Spotland & 
Falinge 

Yes 
Place 

Councillor Rachel 
Massey 

£9,105 

Project Description Creation of a linear orchard and vibrant wildflower area off Rooley Moor Road/Little Dell, Rochdale in commemoration of Joan Turner.  A grassed area will 
be cleared of vegetation from the boundary lines by a combination of flail and tree/shrub thinning processes to improve sight lines to deter anti-social 
behaviour and fly tipping.  The land will be cultivated with a diverse mix of wildflower species to increase the green corridor effect for pollinators and an 
avenue of fruit trees will be planted along Rooley Moor Road for the local community to harvest fresh fruit for eating and create a wildlife habitat to enhance 
the biodiversity of this area.  The old dilapidated wooden bird beak knee rail fence will be removed and replaced with a new metal knee rail fence with 
dimensions to enhance it visually and in keeping with the site.  An entrance archway will be installed on completion of the landscaping works.  Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing will be improving an adjacent area of land that was the site of a former MUGA pitch with the removal of overgrown shrubs and 
prepared for sowing with a mix of woodland wildflower seed and planting of fruit trees to mitigate the loss of some trees that require felling due to their 
condition.  Councillor Massey has given her support to contribute £850 from her Member's Fund for the supply and installation of the memorial archway.  
(Project brief at Appendix 4I) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

Increase in cost of raw materials, etc changing the estimate. 

Page 3 of 4 

P
age 56



Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision 

Ref Name of Project Ward Fund Criteria & 
Priorities Met Request Originator Cost 

TC/08/21 Spinners Green Waiting Restrictions Healey Yes 
Place 

Councillor Wazir £4,000 

Project Description Extend the existing No Waiting At Any Time restrictions for 20 metres along Spinners Green from its junction with Whitworth Road, Rochdale on both sides 
of the road to resolve the issue of parked vehicles obstructing sight lines for motorists entering Spinners Green and exiting onto Whitworth Road.  (Project 
brief at Appendix 4J) 

Risk implication/ Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development 
Alternatives considered resulting in additional costs.  Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward 

Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.  The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any 
objections received during the legal process.  To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended.  Also the estimate 
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising. 

TC/09/21 Clarence Street Additional Street Lighting Column Healey Yes 
Place 

Councillor O'Neill £6,602.90 

Project Description Supply and installation of an additional street lighting column at the rear of 8/10 Clarence Street garage area to improve lighting in the area for public safety.  
Works will consist of the installation of a small feeder pillar at the rear of 12 Clarence Street, a six metre street lighting column and LED lantern at the rear of 
8/10 Clarence Street on the boundary line, twelve metre ducting in the carriageway and sixteen metres of three core SWA cable.  Trees will be pruned at the 
site.  (Project brief at Appendix 4K) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

The estimate may change if the street lighting column, ducting and cabling cannot be installed at the proposed location once the work has started on site 
due to unforeseen circumstances and the tree pruning estimate is based on the current foliage conditions. 

TC/10/21 Rochdale Sports Club Squash Court/Windows Refurbishment Rochdale 
Township 

Yes 
Place 

Rochdale Sports 
Club 

£2,134.50 

Project Description Rochdale Sports Club propose to refurbish two squash court front walls and replace one floor that will complete the work on the four courts needed to 
provide a long term high class sports facility.  In addition, the windows and doors at the front of the building that provide both access to and viewing of the 
external sports areas require replacement with new units that will be more thermally efficient and environmental friendly.  Cost split pro-rata between 
Rochdale North Township and Rochdale South Township as a Rochdale Township wide project.  (Application form at Appendix 4L) 

Risk implication/ 
Alternatives considered 

None 

Page 4 of 4 

P
age 57



 

Form RT03 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  22002200//2211  
AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
RP/02/21 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Development and Learning Support 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Al-Abbas Institute 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

We are a voluntary social enterprise community group set up about 10 years ago to serve and support the 
Rochdale communities. 

Our aims are dedicated to: 

 The ethical, moral, social and spiritual development of children and young adults to be law-abiding 
citizens of the United Kingdom. 

 Educating and empowering children and young people to avoid all types of criminal and anti-social 
behavior, and all forms of exploitation. 

 Providing education that adheres, incorporates and promotes British Values. 
 Helping and supporting those who are the most vulnerable members of our society. 
 Seeking to create a healthy and safe educational environment that is nurturing, empowering, loving, 

and positive where students can grow, develop, and maximize their potential. 
 Treating everyone with respect, integrity and honesty. 

 
Our objectives are to: 
 

 Provide classes/workshops to deliver essential educational, personal, social, developmental and 
health related input to children, and young people as well as their parents. 

 Provide seminars to parents to provide advice and support on education related matters, and 
services available. 

 Undertake outreach work to support the most vulnerable members of our society. 
 
Our activities include providing and delivering: 
 

 Classes/workshops to deliver education and learning for children, and young people. 
 Advice, guidance and support on education matters services available for BAME communities, and 

parents. 
 Health and mental health well-being support in the context of education for BAME children, young 

people, and their parents. 
 Essential provisions for the elderly and the vulnerable in our community by carrying this duty for 

them. 
 

APPENDIX 4A

Page 58



Form RT03 

d) Contact name Zafar Khan 

e) Contact telephone

f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address

h) Web address N/A 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?  Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 
The BAME communities, in general, have disproportionally suffered during the Covid-19 pandemic and this 
is also the case for the BAME communities in Rochdale. They face barriers in opportunities for education 
and employment, and during the pandemic, these have been exacerbated. We are based in the centre of 
Rochdale which is the most deprived area in Rochdale where we would like to support BAME children and 
young people, and their parents by delivering the following: 

 5 classes/workshops per week to deliver core curriculum subjects as well as input on avoiding
criminal and anti-social behavior, and all forms of crime and exploitation for children, and young
people.

 2 seminars per week to provide advice, guidance and support on education matters services
available for BAME communities and parents.

 1 seminar per week to provide advice on health and mental health well-being support in the context
of education for BAME children, young people and their parents.

These classes/workshops will provide children and young people with essential educational input as well as 
advice, guidance and support to avoid crime, anti-social behaviors and all forms of exploitation. The 
seminars will provide much needed support for parents so that they can better support their children’s 
education. 

These classes/workshops/seminars will take place w/c 02 August 2021 to 27 May 2022 for period of 43 
weeks. There will 8 hours delivered each week for 43 weeks, which is a total of 344 hours. The cost per hour 
will be £10 (this is a reduced rate for us from the facilitators) and so the total cost for this part of the project 
will be £3440.00. 

All facilitators are fully DBS checked and fully qualified teachers, and facilitators. 

Project start date 01 September 2021 
Project completion 
date 

29 June 2022 

Page 59



 

Form RT03 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £6880.00 

b) Amount of grant required £4880.00 

c) Amount from other sources £2000.00 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

 
The remaining £2000 has been 
pledged by 4 local businesses. 

 
They have each pledged £500 for 
the overall costs of running the 
centre. 

 
They have already agreed these 
donations. 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose 
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.  
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM 
Revenue and Customs). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
Fully qualified facilitators and teachers to deliver the 
classes/workshops/seminars for subjects/input as described above. 
 
To purchase 5 laptops for the learners to be able to use during their 
classes/workshops to support their learning. Each laptop will cost 
£288.00. 

 
£10 per hour for 8 hours per week 
for 43 weeks = £3440.00 
 
£1440.00. 

TOTAL £4880.00. Page 60



 

Form RT03 

 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  
b) Constitution/governing document  
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 

confirm your organisation has the following: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for 
proposed expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions. 
 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 
 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 
 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 

Rochdale Township Office to make changes. 
 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 

Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office. 
 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 
 Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 

Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 
 Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature Signature 

Full name Zafar Khan Full name Mazhar Iqbal Khan 

Position Chairperson Position Secretary 

Date 14/06/21 Date 14/06/21 

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 
 answered all the relevant questions and 
 enclosed all the information requested: 

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale  
Township Office  Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 61



  
     Tel:  
     Email:  
      

        

                                                                                                      
                                        

 
  

 

 

Quotation 
 

Organisation Name & 
Address: 

Al-Abbas Institute, Moore Street, Rochdale. Lancs. OL16 1QN. 

Quotation No: 01AAI 

Quotation Date: 20/06/2021 

Order No: 01 

  

Description of work Dates & Cost 

Purchase of 5 x Laptops + installed all software as 
per requirements. Cost of each laptop £288. 

Total cost = £1440. 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Payable:  
 

£1440.00 
 

 
Cheques to be made payable to:  
 
Or: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 62



Form RT03 

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2021/22 
APPLICATION FORM REF 

RP/03/21 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office. 

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Inspired by Faith & Science 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Rochdale Science Initiative C.I.C 

b) Type of organisation

× 
Voluntary/ 
community

☐
Registered 

charity

☐
Sports/ 

leisure club

☐
Limited 

company 

☐
Private 

company 

× 
Social 

enterprise 

× 
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides

Inspired by a ten year old boy’s dream to share his love of science with his family, friends and community, 
the Rochdale Science Initiative C.I.C (RSI) have metamorphose this dream into our collective dream. The 
dream is to inspire, harness and nurture a new generation of science enthusiasts and scientists - It is to 
create communal opportunities which advocates the beauty of STEM to the under-represented families 
living in the borough of Rochdale. The long term ambition is to understand and break down barriers in order 
to allow the young and old from the BAME families to raise their STEM capital and remain engaged with 
STEM.  

RSI project’s targets the inhabitants of Central Rochdale, this is an area in the 5% most deprived in 
England. The area is made up of 95% population of south Asian origin; 45% Bangladeshi, 50% 
Kashmiri/Pakistani and 5% white/eastern European.  

Whilst RSI is still a grassroot organisation it has made tremendous progress in engaging the local South 
Asian communities residing in Rochdale. This has been achieved by incorporating concepts based on 
'placed-based' STEM and working on mutual grounds with active researchers and local influencers. 

d) Contact name Mohammed Rahman  

e) Contact telephone

f) Contact address and
postcode

g) Email address

APPENDIX 4B

Page 63



 

Form RT03 

h) Web address www.rochdalescience.com  

 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before? × Yes ☐ No 
 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

Rochdale Science Extravaganza events 2018, 2019 and 2020. 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
☐ Yes ×No  

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 
 

 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 
 
The realisation, except that which is taught at the supplementary Madrasa school (learning the Holy Quran 
and concepts of pray and worship); muslim youths and elders alike lack in knowledge about their own 
glorious Islamic heritage. This now hinders them in negotiating their identity in a social environment.  
 
How can we inspire the Muslim youths, and elders from our community to feel proud of their own identity 
and their own Scientific Technological Engineering and Mathematical (STEM) heritage?  
 
How can we inspire the Muslim youths, and elders, to look at Islam not only as their faith but also as a 
potential source for answers to real-world problems?  
 
During the past few months, I have been very fortunate to engage in the British Science Association's 
"Community Buddies" Initiative. Through this Initiative, I was paired with Claire Garside: researcher at Leeds 
University. We have spent the last couple of months exploring the potentiality of creating culturally relevant 
STEM contents for our local Muslim community, we hope our ideas will now come to fruition. Insha'Allah!  
 
Proposal  
 
By working closely with researchers from various STEM disciplines and local Islamic educators, we will take 
inspiration from both the Quranic verses referencing science, and The Golden Age of Islamic Science - 
traditionally dated from the 8th century to 14th century. Together we will design a course of learning for 
about 30 young people aged 11 and above.  
 
The core learning will focus on three particulars:  Page 64



 

Form RT03 

 
• Science in the Holy Quran - Educators will take inspiration from the Quranic verses which relates to their 
area of specialism. Then with participants, they will explore the scientific elements, and the significance of 
these verses. This will lead to creating a poster board-esque design from the participants' learning, to be 
showcased at the final event.  
 
• Muslim scientists and inventions - Educators and our young participants will research Muslim scientists 
from the Golden Age. Together we will identify the discoveries and inventions they made, correlate to 
modern discoveries and inventions, then create a model including a poster board presentation to be 
showcased at the final event.  
 
• Food in the Holy Quran - Educators and their young participant's will be given a list of food mentioned in 
the Holy Quran, they will research the food to discover it's nutritious values, and how food can be linked with 
healthy eating. After which participants will create a dish and a poster board capturing their learning, which 
will be showcased at the final event.  
 
The finale to this project will be an in-person community science fair. The event will exhibit the output of our 
young learners and also encourage them to project and talk about their learning. Researchers and STEM 
based undergraduate and postgraduate students will deliver hands-on activities, displays and experimental 
demonstrations in line with the theme of Islam and science.  
 
How will the project benefit young people, researchers and the local community?  
 
Upon the completion of this project our young participants will gain knowledge, understanding, and clarity on 
the contributions made by the Muslim civilisation to the modern world. Participants will get the opportunity to 
examine and take an In-depth look at Islam not only as a faith but also as a source of inspiration for worldly 
solutions. Furthermore, participants will familiarise themselves with the Great Muslim scientists from the 
Golden Age, the likes of; Al Kindi, Avicenna and Al-Khwarzimi. From which they will be able to give 
examples of scientific discoveries and technological innovations, including their roles as scientists and 
inventors, and how they have transcended the boundaries of societies and shaped out the modern world.  
 
For our researchers we hope our platform can inspire them to think differently, demonstrate that they can 
link their specialism or expertise to, (faith) and hence create wonderful engaging content. Overall we want 
our researchers to feel confident engaging with the Muslim communities, and project themselves well to our 
audience.  
 
For our audience of the Islamic faith, we hope the project will have embedded understanding and pride in 
their own Muslim heritage. For the audience of other faith or no faith we hope our event will have brought to 
life the plethora of contributions the Muslim civilisation has made to our concepts of STEM, and this will 
promote intercultural dialogue, social cohesion and mutual respect. We hope all participants will feel inspired 
to seek further STEM capital. 

Project start date 25/06/2021 
Project completion 
date 

16/08/2021 

   

Page 65



 

Form RT03 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £6,000 

b) Amount of grant required £989.60 

c) Amount from other sources £5,010.40 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

British Science Association  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Local business sponsorship  

£1,200 to reimburse 1 researcher 
and project manager.  
 
£2,800 to purchase materials for 
thirty young participants.  
 
Total = £4,000 
 
£1010.40 

Confirmed successful  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/01/21 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose 
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.  
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM 
Revenue and Customs). 

Expenditure item Cost 

Sound 
 
32 Poster boards  
 
Print artwork, poster design, 4 roller banners 
 
Online advertising 

£90 
 
£239.60 
 
£560 
 
£100 

TOTAL £989.60 
   Page 66



 

Form RT03 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s) × Yes    
b) Constitution/governing document × Yes 
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 

confirm your organisation has the following: 
 Child protection policies and procedures × Yes  ☐ N/A  
 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
 volunteers 

× Yes ☐ N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for 
proposed expenditure 

x Yes 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

● Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions. 
● No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 
● Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 
● Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation 

from Rochdale Township Office to make changes. 
● Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 

Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office. 
● Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 
● Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 

Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 
● Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature 

 

Signature 

 

Full name Mohammed A Rahman  Full name Goolshad Miah  

Position Project Manager Position Chairman  

Date 27/06/2021 Date 27/06/2021  

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 
● answered all the relevant questions and 
● enclosed all the information requested: 

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale  
Township Office  Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 

  Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP PPRROOJJEECCTT BBRRIIEEFF AANNDD 
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North RP/04/21 

Name of Request Originator Your Trust 

Project Manager & Ext Sarah Shard Tel: 

Completed by Sarah Shard Date Completed 28/6/2021 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS OOFF SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location New Pioneers Project  

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Your Trust (formerly Link4Life) are working in partnership with the 
Career Brokers Team on a project by the town centre of Central 
Rochdale. The aim is to engage the new pioneers into a variety of 
activities. 

The local area is very deprived and we are focusing on residents in the 
high-rise flats where residents are either on low income or benefits. We 
are keen to engage with the local community and provide a service in 
whatever way we can. 

There is a demand from local residents to engage in regular physical 
activity, especially now with people more socially isolated than usual.  
Within the local area, there are no other local activities currently 
running for people to engage in. 

We have been approached by many residents (both females and 
males) recently enquiring about what activities might be available as a 
lot of other venues are still currently closed or those that are open, are 
far to travel to and they want something within their own community. 
We are currently in contact with 38 residents and 10 from Sanctuary 
Trust (just cleared drug and alcohol misuse) and have been signposted 
by Making Space. Some are in debt, so we are also linking them to the 
Community Champions for advice and also Skills4Sport programmes to 
gain qualifications etc. 

There is strong interest with people wanting to escape the isolation of 
small flats or small houses with no or little outside space of their own. A 
lot of local residents do live alone too and have been on their own for 
several months. Anxiety, depression and mental health is a concern. 
There is also a gap in individuals coming together so we want to reduce 
community cohesion and bring together people of all different 
backgrounds and cultures. 

With much publicity concerning health risks of being overweight and 
mental health, they want to exercise and become healthier. We are 
keen to be able to provide a service to the community and whilst we’re 
only a small congregation, we do have strong links with local partners 
and have a large centrally placed building available in the heart of the 
community, ideal in offering exercise classes to local residents. People 
have told us that they want to exercise in a safe, local venue which is 
both affordable and accessible to them. They don’t have the confidence 
to travel further afield. 

The focus will be to set up some activities up for the group. Starting off 
by signposting and introducing them to the new pilot scooter scheme. 

APPENDIX 4C
 

        
      

         

  

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
  

 

 

 

Page 73



 
  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

We are also looking at delivering some weight management and cook 
and taste sessions as the residents are struggling with budget and 
eating healthily. We are also linking them into the community 
champions for budgeting. They are also interested in learning or 
recapping how to ride a bike so we are hoping to put some activities on 
for this. There is interest in badminton, table tennis and bowls and 
Rochdale Unitarian Church has this, we just need a bit of help with 
buying some equipment. We are also hoping to link in with Rochdale 
Football Club to deliver some walking football sessions. We are also 
contacting RBH to increase our partnership and outreach work further. 

We would like to deliver a taster event where we will host: badminton, 
table tennis, bowls, board games, knitting, tea and coffee so that local 
residents can give it a try. After this, we can run some taster sessions 
so there are multiple activities for people to mix between to 
accommodate all abilities and ages and enhance mental and physical 
health, as well as the social aspect. It will be beginner friendly. Once 
the residents have been attending some sessions, we would like a 
volunteer to co-ordinate the session going forwards for sustainability 
and ownership. 

We have completed a risk assessment of Rochdale Unitarian Church 
and it is Covid-secure. We now need some support to start the 
activities for local residents and will work with local champions, 
residents, connectors and organisations, to help complete this task. 

The church has a big room available and it would be good to make use 
of it as they currently only have use for the hall one day per week. We 
are opening the class to all residents but also focusing on attracting 
people in lower socio-economic groups, BAME community and polish 
community, as well as older people and those with mental health and 
isolation barriers. There is a bridge between some individuals and we 
want to bring everybody together more.  

We expect a mixture of ladies than men to come along at the start but 
once they have built confidence at the sessions, we hope they will 
encourage their partners and friends to come along too. Word of mouth 
will also be important. We will work with local partners e.g. Rochdale 
Council, Your Trust and local champions to help to promote the 
activities even further.  

They will be delivered by a qualified fitness instructor/coach who will 
have undergone covid-19 and health and safety training too. It will give 
residents the confidence to leave their homes and improve both their 
mental and physical health in a safe environment. 

Desired Outcome (what is We hope this funding will help us to set up these new fitness classes in 
required by the scheme) the heart of the community then we can continue them long term, 

sustainably once we have been given the support to set them up and 
establish them. We hope the session will run by a volunteer in the long-
term who can become a local champion and the group can take 
ownership.  

We expect outcomes to include: local residents becoming more active; 
improved general health; improved confidence and resilience; reduction 
in social isolation, anxiety and depression; possible further outcomes 
e.g. promoting community cohesion; identifying local champions; stop 
smoking, alcohol reduction, positive change in diet, healthy eating, 
budgeting etc. 

Township Priorities Met People Page 74



 

 

  
 

      

 

 

  
  

   
 

   
   
   
   
   
  
 

  
 

 

     
 
  
   
 

 

 

 
  

  

 

   

 

      

   

 

Land Owner Private 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Requested Funding 

 One-off Event (3 hours): 2 x coaching staff for 4 hours including set up @ £25/hour = £200; 4 x 
hours x hall hire @ £22/hour = £88, refreshments = £60) = £348 

 Coaching delivery (badminton, table tennis, bowls): 12 x sessions @ £25/hour – 2 hour 
sessions = £600 

 Hall Hire (badminton, table tennis, bowls): 12 x sessions @ £25/hour x 2 hours = £600 
 Coaching delivery (football): 12 x sessions @ £25/hour x 2 staff = £600 
 Training Costs: (including Health & Safety, covid-19 training, First Aid, Planning) = £100 
 Equipment: (badminton racquets, shuttlecocks, table tennis racquets, balls) = £128 
 PPE:  (including: hand sanitiser, gloves, signage, anti-bacterial wipes, First Aid kit etc): = £150 
 Food: (towards cook and taste sessions): £300 
 Administrator: (additional hours to support registers, co-ordination, case study, evaluation, 

finances, marketing, welfare calls etc) 20 x hours £9/hour = £180 
 Board games: £70 
 TOTAL: £3,076 

INKIND Funding 

 Co-ordinator staffing time (1 x Your Trust, 2 x Career Broker) = £1,800 
 Healthy Eating Co-ordinator (delivery of cook and taste sessions) = £400 
 Delivery of cycling sessions (including use of bikes, helmets, drop off) = £3,000 
 Model cars for activities = £90 
 TOTAL: £5,290 

Total Project Cost: £8,366 

Risks that may change estimate 

Temporary changes to government guidelines. 

Total Estimated Fees £3,076 (Funding requested) 

Total Estimated Works Costs £5,290 (In Kind) 

Total Cost £8,366 (Project cost – including Inkind) 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code 

CC.. TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS 

Estimated Start Date 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 
Page 75



 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

      

  

  

 
 

  

  

 
 

   
   
  

 

Evidence 

Completion Date 

Evidence 

DD.. AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

KEY 
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

Page 76



 

Form RT03 

RROOCCHHDDAALLEE  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  22002211//2222  
AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  

 

REF 
RP/05/21 

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants.  If you need advice or support to 
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.  

SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT 

Name of project Community Engagement Cultural Night 

 

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS 

a) Name of organisation Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association 

b) Type of organisation 

 
Voluntary/ 
community 

 
Registered 

charity 

 
Sports/ 

leisure club 

 
Limited 

company 

 
Private 

company 

 
Social 

enterprise 

  
Other  
type 

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides 

 
 
 To promote friendship, goodwill, understanding, partnership and interaction between the 

communities of different backgrounds living or working in Rochdale. 
 

 To raise awareness about the issue that affect their lives and livelihood and promote health and 
wellbeing through various activities and awareness sessions. 
 

 To organize social, cultural, welfare and sporting activities for residents in Rochdale including 
children, students, men, women and elders for recreational and other leisure time with the object of 
promoting racial harmony and improving quality of life of the above mentioned. 

 

d) Contact name Mudassir Yasin 

e) Contact telephone   

f) Contact address and 
postcode 

 
 

g) Email address  

h) Web address www.pkca.org.uk 

 

APPENDIX 4D

Page 77



 

Form RT03 

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES 

a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?  Yes  No 
 

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below 

 
These two township projects we were funded and delivered upon. 
 
CG/05/16 – Rinse & Recycle (Grant awarded £2,200 in November 2016) 
CE/11/16 – Football Tournament (Grant awarded £1,500 in October 2016) 

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come 
from Rochdale Council? 

 
 Yes  No 

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your 
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments) 
 

 

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION 

Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants, 
organisation, group or wider community? 
 
Event:     Pakistan Independence Day 2021 

Location: Middleton Arena 

When:     14th August 2021 

Timings:  6:30pm 

PKCA plan to hold our annual 2021 Pakistan Independence Day celebrations at Number One Riverside in 
Rochdale for the flag raising event. 

Its aim is to celebrate the Pakistani culture, its many faiths and to bring existing, new and emerging 
communities together. This will be a covid compliant, community cohesion event and will also serve as a 
great way for communities and stakeholders to learn more about the Pakistani community in Rochdale and 
their contribution to society and economy.  

This event will celebrate those from a Pakistani heritage and how they chose to settle all over Britain in 
towns like Rochdale. 

Our current mayor Cllr Aasim Rashid was born in Pakistan but is now a son of Rochdale; a town where 
people venture from all over the world, of different heritage, but are always proud to be where they are from 
and are now. 

Rochdale has been a home to people from many different backgrounds for many years, so this is a 
celebration of Rochdale’s diversity. 

The event will re-emphasise the message that Rochdale has also been a beacon in recognising that it is 
possible to be a good citizen of Britain whilst still cherishing the Pakistani heritage. Rochdale has been a Page 78



 

Form RT03 

home to people from many different backgrounds for many years, so this will be a celebration of Rochdale’s 
diversity. 

The message from PKCA, and especially on Pakistan Independence Day is, and will be that we do not 
tolerate or accept division in any part of society 

This event will showcase the many cultures of Pakistan, the languages and traditions.  

After a long period where Rochdale, like many other towns and cities across the UK, were affected 
by the Covid-19 pandemic and lockdowns – this will be a fantastic event for our communities to 
have an opportunity for some celebration, albeit in a measured and safe way.  

Another positive outcome we would expect from this event will be improved relations, mutual 
respect and better understanding between the authorities, the local communities and the British 
Pakistani youth in particular. 

By including and involving the wider community it will foster better community cohesion between 
different communities, generations, faith and cultures. 

The organisers will ensure that this event is covid compliant by: 
 having covid marshals 
 distribution of masks 
 hand sanitiser stations 
 personnel to ensure social distancing is maintained  
 

Project start date 14th August 2021 
Project completion 
date 

14th August 2021 

Page 79



 

Form RT03 

 

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES 

a) Cost of project £8648.32 

b) Amount of grant required £7948.32 

c) Amount from other sources £700.00 

d) Details of other funding 

Funder What they may fund Dates of funding decisions 

 
Members Contribution 
 
Business Sponsors 

 
£300.00 
 
£400.00 

 
29/06/2021 
 
29/06/2021 

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose 
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues.  At least two quotations will be 
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.  
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM 
Revenue and Customs). 

Expenditure item Cost 

 
Venue Hire  
 
Entertainment 
 
Poster, Tickets, Advertisement & Promotion 
 
Videography & Photography 
 
Food/Refreshments 

 
£3240.32 
 
£2500.00 
 
£348.00 
 
£400.00 
 
£2160.00 

TOTAL 8648.32 Page 80



 

Form RT03 

 

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Please supply the following documents when you submit your application.  IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY 
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION.  Please tick the 
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application. 

a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)  
b) Constitution/governing document  
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please 

confirm your organisation has the following: 
 Child protection policies and procedures  Yes  N/A  
 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and  
 volunteers 

 Yes  N/A  

d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for 
proposed expenditure 

 

 

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION 

We, the undersigned agree to: 

 Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions. 
 No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given. 
 Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised 

by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf. 
 Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from 

Rochdale Township Office to make changes. 
 Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed 

Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office. 
 Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund. 
 Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale 

Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes. 
 Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or 

can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the 
grant on behalf of the organisation. 

Contact Person 
Organisation Chair or Treasurer 
(Different from Contact Person) 

Signature Signature 

Full name Mudassir Yasin Full name Haseeb Ahmed 

Position Chair Person Position Secretary 

Date 29/06/2021 Date 29/06/2021 

 

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have: 
 answered all the relevant questions and 
 enclosed all the information requested: 

- Annual accounts - Constitution/governing document 
- Bank statement(s) - Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues 
- BACS form 

 

We will return incomplete application forms. 
 

Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale  
Township Office  Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 81



FW: Function Costs
July 8, 2021 |  1:00 pm |  82 KB

From:

To:

 Nazam Suleman 

 pkca.org.uk

Please see below
 
Nazam Suleman

 

 

 
 

 

 

To access our services go to www.rochdale.gov.uk
For news and social media updates go to www.rochdale.gov.uk/news
 
Please consider the environment before printing this email.
 

From:   
Sent: 07 July 2021 11:02
To: Nazam Suleman  
Subject: Func�on Costs
 

 

Page 82

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/news/


  

Venue Hire Fees

Main Auditorium with 8� (shallow) stage: £1,157.63. This fee will include use of the house technical equipment,
which is normally charged in addi�on to venue hire. Value c£700

X18 ten foot round banque�ng tables: FOC

180 Banquet chairs: FOC

180 chair covers and bows FOC

18 ten foot round table cloths: FOC

18 ornamental centre pieces FOC

Total Venue Hire Costs: £1,157.63

Staffing

Set Up /Take Down Team: X4 Staff £448.00 (£16.00 per hour, 7 hours total)

Technician: £308.64 (£25.72 per hour, 12 hour call)

FOH Manager: £126.00 (£18.00 per hour, 7 hour call)

X5 FOH Stewards: £560.00 (£16.00 per hour, 7 hour call)

Total staffing cost: £1,442.64

Total Costs Net: £2,700.27

VAT: £520.05

Total Costs Gross: £3,240.32

  
 

Page 83



 
INVOICE 

 INV3011 
    Salim Sabri 

DATE 
              7 Jul 2021 
     
 

BALANCE DUE 
GBP £2,200.00 

 
           
BILL TO  
Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association 

 
 

 
 
 

DISCRIPTION                RATE          QTY       AMOUNT 

       
Sufi Qawwali Night      £2,500.00      1      £2,500.00 
Event: 74th Pakistan Independence Day- Evening 
Celebration Dinner 
 
Date: 14th August 2021 
 
Address: Middleton Arena, 
   Middleton, 
   Manchester 
   M24 1AG 
 
Rate inclusive of travel; sound system should be 
organised independently. 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Deposit  Paid       -£300.00              1        -£300.00 
Remainder of balance to be paid on the night 
 

 
SUBTOTAL             £2,200.00 
 
TAX (0%)                    £0.00 
_______________________________________ 
 
TOTAL             £2,500.00 
_______________________________________ 
 
BALANCE DUE   GBP £2,200.00 
_______________________________________ 

Page 84



Pakistani & Kashmiri

Community Association

 
 

Date: Invoice No:

28/06/2021

Quotation
QTY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT VAT

100 A3 posters - digital - printed on 250gsm £70.00 £14.00

400 14th August Tickets - printed on 370gsm £120.00 £24.00

2 Posters Designing work £100.00 £20.00

Poster Designing Charges: £50+vat (each)

SUBTOTAL     290.00£  

VAT TOTAL    58.00

TOTAL  348.00£  

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

Registered in England & Wales No. 

Company VAT No: 

Page 85



INVOICE TO: 

Pakistani & kashmiri Community Association 

 

 

PROFORMA INVOICE

COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

SALESPERSON P.O. NUMBER REQUISITIONER SHIPPED VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS 

 D-389 25.06.2021 50% Down 

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

5 
Coverage of 3-4 Hour sessions, includes Pictures, Videos, Converted 

on to CD 
£80.00 £400.00 

SUB TOTAL £400.00 

DISCOUNTS 

VAT Inclusive 

TOTAL £400.00 

 Page 86



Quotation

DATE: 07 July 2021

OUR REF: PKCA/Jul 21

YOUR REF:

Qty Description Unit price Total

Pakistan Day Dinner 14 August 21

Catering for 200 ppl (menu as discussed) £1,700.00
Crockery / Cutlery Hire £300.00
Waiters / Serving Staff (4 staff) £160.00

Sub Total £2,160.00

TOTAL £2,160.00

Tweedale Street  •  Rochdale  •  Lancashire  •  OL11 1HH
Telephone: 01706 645200  ~  Email: info@castlemere.org.uk
Company Limited by Guarantee  •  Registered in England & Wales 3887534  •  Registered Charity No. 1085737

PKCA

www.castlemere.org.uk

C O M M U N I T Y C EN T RE
C EAST LEMER

Page 87



 

        
      

         

 

 

  

          

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 

      

 

 

 

APPENDIX 4E

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP PPRROOJJEECCTT BBRRIIEEFF AANNDD 
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North RP/06/21 

Name of Request Originator FOSAC and Ward Councillors 

Project Manager & Ext Michael Buczman 

Completed by FOSAC & Michael Buczman Date Completed 18.05.2021 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS OOFF SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location Cronkeyshaw Common community sensory & herb garden  

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To create a new sensory & herb garden out of the old spiral garden on 
Cronkeyshaw Common. Please see below for location and the spiral 
garden as it is currently.  

This will be managed and maintained by the Friends of Syke and 
Cronkeyshaw once complete. A Service Level Agreement will also be 
signed by the group once complete. 

If funds have been granted the project works will commence in Autumn 
2021 as this will be the ideal time for FOSAC to plant. 

FOSAC are also looking to plant woodland plants and bulbs on areas of 
Cronkeyshaw common and in the area around the Joy Street 
Greenway. 

FOSAC will look to promote this project via social media outlets to 
promote the community garden and the work of the newly formed 
group. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To provide a visual improvement to the area and provide fresh herbs to 
the community free of charge. 

To encourage community involvement in the enhancement and care of 
the area developing a community ethos while achieving the stated aims 
of the Friends Group (FOSAC). 

To establish a project to be entered into the ‘It’s Your Neighbourhood’ 
section of Rochdale in Bloom 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Purchase and delivery of fresh grade one top soil/manure - £375 
Plants for the garden - £300 
Landscape Team excavation and import of soil – £1052.16 
Bulbs for areas of the common and Greenway – £300 
EM project management fee at 10% - £202.72 

Page 88



 
 

 

   

 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

      

  

 
 

  

  

 
 

   
   
  

 

Risks that may change estimate 

Total Estimated Fees (Nett) 
£202.72 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) 
£2,027.16 

Total Cost (Nett) 
£2,229.88 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code 

CC.. TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS 

Estimated Start Date September 2021 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Allow time for delivery of soil. Also dependent upon landscape team availability to undertake physical 
works. Planned date for planting will be Autumn 2021 

Completion Date November 2021 

Evidence 

DD.. AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 10/6/21 

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

KEY 
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

Page 89



 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 90



 

 

 

  

         

 

  

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  

  
   

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

   
 

 

 
 

  

APPENDIX 4F

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North TC/04/21 

Name of Request Originator Councillor Faisal Rana 

Project Manager & Ext Nathan McKendrey 

Completed by Nathan McKendrey Date Completed 16/06/2021 

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME

Scheme Name & Location Junction of Clement Royds Street and Spotland Road 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Concerns have been raised by residents and Ward Councillors that 
visibility at the junction of Clement Royds Street and Spotland Road is 
restricted and a potential cause of accidents which are occurring at this 
location. 

A previous scheme introduced buildouts and waiting restriction at this 
junction to increase inter-visibility at the junction for both pedestrians 
and vehicles. The scheme also helped to reduce the width of the 
carriageway making it easier for pedestrians to cross Spotland Road. 

This scheme proposes the extension of the existing buildouts along 
Spotland Road by approximately 5 metres on all sides and extend the 
existing no waiting any time restrictions. 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

Highway support any scheme which will increase the inter-visibility for 
both pedestrians and vehicles as this will add safety at the junction.   

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Increased inter-visibility at the junction. 
Reduce the potential for collisions 
Improve road safety and reduce the risk of collisions 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

 The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.

 There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

 The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.
 The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections

received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

 This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

 This estimate assumes that there will be no need to amend any existing services in the highway
Page 91



  
  

  

 
  

 
 

     

 

 

  

 

 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 
  

 

 

 

  

   

 
 

   

   

 

   

 
    

    
    
     

 
 

 

Risks that may change estimate 
 Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its 

development will result in additional costs. 
 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or 

TfGM.  
 Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. 
 The requirement to amend any services under the highway 

Total Estimated Fees £4000 

Total Estimated Works Costs £7509 

**Total Cost 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£11509 

Amount Approved by Township Cost Code 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.   

Evidence 

 A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received 
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload. 

 It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission. 
 Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees 

Completion Date 
Dependent on start date but will be at least 12 months after 
commencement of design 

Evidence 

 A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.  
 It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.  
 Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account. 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
Improve Safety 

Accessibility Accident Reduction 
Condition Reduce Congestion 
Township Priority Improve Network 

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. Page 92



Page 93



TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale Township TC/05/21 

Name of Request Originator Councillor O’Neill 

Project Manager & Ext John McAuley – 

Completed by John McAuley Date Completed 30th June 2021 

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME

Scheme Name & Location Feature Lighting – Broadfield Park Slopes, The Esplanade, Rochdale 
Town Centre 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To Feature Light the Trees and Slopes in Broadfeld Park (Adjacent 
Rochdale Town Hall)– The lighting will have the functionally to be multi-
coloured and the settings will be programable – utilising existing street 
lighting infrastructure to reduce clutter on the Highway. 

Installation Costs 

 To floodlight using Colour Reach LED, attached to existing
heavy-duty street lighting column and associated cabling
/ control equipment in existing feeder pillar attached to street
lighting column 13 The Esplanade
£9,500.00

Accrual Cost (To Maintain Electrical Infrastructure and Socket) 

 To Accrue socket and electrical infrastructure into PFI for future
maintenance (for five years to be reviewed in year 6)

 Column 13 - £47.75 (per Annum) - Total cost (£45.75 x 5) =
£238.75

Installation Costs £9,500.00 + Accrual Costs £238.75 = £9,738.75 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

The scheme will utilising existing street lighting infrastructure reducing 
clutter on the Highway 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To improve and enhance the nighttime environment. 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

That equipment specified is available and there is clear access to the street lighting equipment (column 13 
The Esplanade) 

APPENDIX 4G
 

 

 

  

        

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

            
                                                                                                                
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  

 

  
 

 

 

Page 94



 

 
  

 

     

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

  

 

 
    

     
      

     
 

 
 

    
     
  
 

Risks that may change estimate 
Availability and increase unit costs of specified equipment – limited access to street lighting equipment due 
to ongoing refurbishment work on the Rochdale Town Square Project 

Total Estimated Fees (Nett) N/A 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) Installation Costs £9,500.00  

**Total Cost (Nett) 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

Yes - Installation Costs £9,500.00 + Accrual Costs 
£238.75 = £9,738.75 

Amount Approved by Township Cost Code 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date Within 2 Months of Receiving Commission 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

eg start within two months of receiving commission.  Evidence: fees being expended on system. 

Completion Date 

Evidence 

eg completion within six months of start date.  Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of 
final account 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 30/06/2021 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
Improve Safety 

Accessibility Accident Reduction 
Condition Reduce Congestion 
Township Priority Improve Network 

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 

KEY 
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

Page 95



 

        
      

        

 

 

  

          

 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
   

 
 

  
 

APPENDIX 4H

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP PPRROOJJEECCTT BBRRIIEEFF AANNDD 
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale TC/06/21 

Name of Request Originator Residents/friends group/Councillor Rana 

Project Manager & Ext Bob Bevan/Richard Whittle 

Completed by BB/RW – Ian Trickett Date Completed 15/06/21 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS OOFF SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location Phase 2 Link gravel path extension from previous Caldershaw Road 
playground path (RP/32/19) through Caldershaw Brook linear 
greenway to meadow view. 
New path is to replace existing muddy desire line path and install 
additional wooden footbridge over brook for improved accessibility and 
safety 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To follow on the great fully received phase 1 path the creation of a 
phase 2 gravel path is proposed to make safe the excessively slippy 
wet muddy desire line path that local residents have created over time. 
This will help to link in with the rest of the existing gravel path network 
to form a looped walking route which is also heavily used by school 
children and as a walking route for health and wellbeing. 

A recent new wildflower meadow has been created on site and funded 
by Tesco’s Bags of help grant to enhance biodiversity along with 
drainage works in the form of a swale and wetland plants funded by 
EM. 

Future maintenance of mowing path edges will be completed by 
rangers as part of existing path mowing regime 

The addition of a new footbridge (to be constructed and installed by 
rangers to reduce project costs) is to improve safety for site users to 
cross the brook rather than jumping or using stepping stones as per 
present desire line path. 

Tree thinning works will also take place along the route of the new path 
to improve sight lines for security of green space users. 

To mitigate loss of any trees in the autumn to improve sight lines 
around 20 mixed fruit trees will be planted as part of the externally 
funded Tesco wildflower meadow. The sites recent development has 
been so well received that one long term resident has privately funded 
4 edible cherry trees for the site and during lock down many residents 
found solace in keeping the site tidy as a form of civic pride. 
Another heartwarming story was that a local resident who in in his last 
year of battling a terminal illness took SO much pleasure in the joys of 
the wildflower meadow near his house as that was as far as he could 
walk arranged for his service and ashes to be scattered on the 
wildflower meadow.   

Project implementation/administration fee 10% costs £510. 
Desired Outcome (what is A new section of gravel path would improve site safety over the 
required by the scheme) excessively slippy when wet muddy desire line path that local residents 

have created over time and expand local accessibility to this ever 
growing in popularity green space for health and wellbeing. 

Project implementation/administration fee 10% costs £510. Page 96



 

 

  
 

      

 

  

 

   

 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

      

  

 
 

  

  

 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Detailed quotes obtained 
Path materials and construction £5000 
Price for rangers to purchase materials / build and install a pedestrian bridge = £1000 in comparison to an 
estimated £5000 for a metal bridge 

Risks that may change estimate 
None envisaged  

Total Estimated Fees £510 

Total Estimated Works Costs £5100 

Total Cost £5610 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code 

CC.. TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS 

Estimated Start Date Autumn 2021 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Complaints from local residents and school children about desire line path conditions and request for a 
new link path and bridge for safety 

Completion Date Winter 2021 

Evidence 

Bridge to be pre built off site in sections and completed on site 

DD.. AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 22/6/21 

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

Page 97



 

 

Phase 1 link path view back through from 
Caldershaw play area  

Page 98



 

 

Recently created wildflower meadow funded by 
Tesco bags of help scheme to include the planting 
of 20 mixed fruit trees on site in the autumn to 
emphasise Caldershaw brooks original planting 
scheme design of being a strumping lane    

Page 99



 

 

 

 

 

Existing desire line stepping stones over the brook 
which the rangers plan to make safer by building a new 
wooden bridge over in a similar design to existing bridge 
further along the brook. 

This image is during a dry spell so for most of the year 
locals (mainly school children choose to jump the brook 
to cut a corner)  

A new wider bridge will also improve maintenance on 
the site by allowing mowing machines to access both 
sides of the site from one access point. 

Page 100



 

 

 

 

 

Another secluded section of existing desire line by 
the brook which we plan to open up to increase 
sight lines in the autumn as part of phase 2 
footpath creation 

Page 101



 

 

 

A shallower slope has already been profiled by us 
on the site of the proposed new bridge during the 
new Tesco wildflower meadow creation to pre-
empt phase 2 path works to avoid a steeper and 
very slippy desire line path which will make the site 
more accessible to less able bodied users. 

Page 102



 

 

Another example desire line path in the summer 
before being mown so little movement for social 
distancing   

Page 103



 

 

Last year’s swale created to help drain a very wet 
section of the site again to pre-empt phase 2 path 
works which will run over the culverted section of 
the swale. 

The new swale will also help to increase 
biodiversity of the site having been seeded with 
wetland plant seed mix and transplanted wetland 
plugs   

Page 104



 

 

Desire line link path pre-mowing 

Page 105



 

 

Another Section of secluded desire line path that 
we plan to open up to improve sight lines for 
security of users   

Page 106



 

 

Longer view of newly created swale showing 
greening process of seed mix and EM funded 
weeping willow on the bend of the swale to help 
define and enhance the landscaping project for 
future generations  

Page 107



 

 

 
Existing wooden bridge further along the brook 
which is too narrow for mowing machine to cross. 

Phase 3 would see obstacles like steps being 
removed from the north side of this bridge and to 
raise the south side to create a more accessible 
footpath  

Page 108



 

 

Long view of desire line pre mowing over swale 
field  

Page 109



 

 

 

 

 

Long view of swale field desire line cut off point at 
the junction of phase 1 path and existing linear 
path   

Page 110



 

 

 Last year’s wildflower meadow created at the aptly 
named meadow view entrance to caldershaw 
brook.

This project was requested from Bee Inspired a 
local in bloom group and was kindly supported and 
funded with a £440 grant from Cllr Massey's 
member's fund.

EM Match funded the project in order to complete 
the meadow as a swale and additional machine 
work was required to landscape the area in such a 
way as to avoid waterlogging. Page 111



 
 

 

 

 

Birds-eye view of proposed phase 2 path works on 
caldershaw brook to replace dangerous sections of 
desire line paths 

Brown = proposed new phase 2 path layout 

Brown box = new bridge 

Blue lines = swales  

Red M’s = new & existing wildflower meadows 

New path layout helps to create a figure of 8 easier 
access walking route to maximise public enjoyment to 
this up and coming valued greenspace  

Page 112



 

        
      

        

   

  

    

          

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 

APPENDIX 4I

TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP PPRROOJJEECCTT BBRRIIEEFF AANNDD 
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North TC/07/21 

Name of Request Originator Local community RBH and Councillor Massey 

Project Manager & Ext Bob Bevan Richard Whittle 

Completed by Bob Bevan Richard Whittle Date Completed 28/06/2021 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS OOFF SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location Joan Turner community memorial orchard and wildflower area off 
Rooley Moor Road / Little Dell 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

This phased project is aimed at improving the health and wellbeing of 
the local community / increase civic pride and increased biodiversity. 
The aim of this scheme is to alter what is a plain, slightly unloved grass 
field into a linear orchard and vibrant wildflower area.  
To achieve this effect, several boundary lines of vegetation will be 
cleared by a combination of flail and tree and shrub thinning processes 
which will in turn improve sight lines through this field which will help to 
deter ASB such as Fly-tipping.  
Once cleared these areas will be seeded with a variety of wildflower 
species for all year round interest. 
Diversifying the species mix will also increase the green corridor effect 
for pollinators and an avenue of mixed fruit trees will be planted along 
Rooley Moor Road for community use. 
The site requires protection by replacing the old dilapidated wooden 
birds beak knee rail fence with a new metal knee rail for longevity the 
design of which will be of a smaller dimensions to standard metal knee 
rail to be more visually pleasing and in keeping with the site. It is also 
envisaged that an entrance archway will be installed when landscaping 
has been completed. 
The scheme is going to be supported and maintained over time with 
volunteers from RBC / Council operatives / community payback 
offenders / Rangers. 
Adjacent to this site RBH will be jointly designing / funding work on their 
land which is the site of a former MUGA pitch. 
This Co-partnership approach has the joint aim of improving site lines 
and increasing biodiversity as well as making the whole area more 
visually appealing to the local community and will jointly be naming the 
area after Joan Turner. 
An additional avenue of mixed fruit trees will be planted along the site 
to mitigate the loss of some trees that require felling due to their 
condition and age and will add an early blossom bloom to the field. 
Overgrown shrubs which were once planted to shield / screen the view 
of the MUGA pitch on the North / South and West of the site are to be 
removed in phases starting with the northerly bed to improve sight lines 
through the site for community safety. 
Areas that are being cleared of old shrub beds will also be sown with a 
mix of woodland wildflower seed and cut annually. 
A later phase 2 application will see a link path proposal through from 
the adjacent “little dell” woodland which is being improved each season 
by volunteers and the council’s ranger team. 
additional clearance work of shrub beds to the west and south of the 
old removed MUGA pitch plot over time with volunteers 

Page 113



 

 

 

 

  
 

      

 

 
 

   
 

      

  

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

   
 

      

  

  

 
 

  

  

 

   
   
  

 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

Stimulate pride / improve mental health and wellbeing / accessibility 
deter ASB / raise the quality of the physical environment  
improve community safety for children at play and visitors alike with 
improved sight lines 
Increase bio-diversity for pollinators 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Detailed quotes and joint party site meetings to confirm project outcomes are to be achieved after 
Complaints from local residents with regards to fly-tipping / overgrown vegetation / lack of floral interest / 
lack of identity / derelict appearance caused by old knee rail - a confident sustainable scheme has been 
proposed. 
Risks that may change estimate 
Increase in cost of raw materials etc. 
Total Estimated Fees £  905.00 
Total Estimated Works Costs £ 9050.00 
Total Cost £ 9955.00 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code 

CC.. TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS 

Estimated Start Date August 2021 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 
Evidence 
A kick start on improving the site has already commenced by flailing off the field boundaries and the areas 
are undergoing a clean-up of hidden fly-tipped items by the hit team. 

Preparation of the wildflower areas will continue through this period. 

Completion Date Spring 2022 
Evidence 
Time line familiarity of this scale of greening project 

DD.. AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme 

Signature of Head of Service Date 

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager 

Date 

Signature of Township Chair Date 

KEY 
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer Page 114



 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 115



 

 

 

Page 116



TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale TC/08/21 

Name of Request Originator Councillor Shah Wazir 

Project Manager & Ext Nathan Mckendrey 

Completed by Joe Mclaughlin Date Completed 1/7/21 

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME

Scheme Name & Location Spinners Green junction Whitworth Road, Rochdale 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Whitworth Road already includes no waiting at any time restrictions at 
the junction of Spinners Green. However, the restrictions only go for 2 
metres into Spinners Green. Consequently site lines can be obstructed 
when vehicles park too close to Whitworth Road on Spinners Green  

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

It is proposed to run the existing no waiting restrictions a further 20 
metres down Spinners Green from the junction with Whitworth Road 
both sides of the road which will resolve any issues with site lines 
exiting and entering Spinners Green. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To keep clear the junction of Whitworth Road enabling free and easy 
access in and out of Spinners Green with unobstructed site lines. 
Townships have commented that all 3 ward members are in agreement 
with the proposed scheme. 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation Yes 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

B. ESTIMATE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

 The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.

 There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

 The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.

 The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

 This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate 
 Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its

development will result in additional costs.

 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.

APPENDIX 4J

Page 117



 Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. 

Total Estimated Fees £3500 

Total Estimated Works Costs £500 

**Total Cost 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£4000 

Amount Approved by Township  Cost Code  

 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date  To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.   

 

Evidence 

 A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received 
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.  

 It is envisaged that a start date will be within 12 months of receiving the commission. 
 Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees 

Completion Date 
Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after 
commencement of design 

Evidence 

 A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.  
 It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.  
 Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account. 

 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service See attached email Date 01/07/21 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
 Improve Safety   
Accessibility   Accident Reduction   
Condition   Reduce Congestion   
Township Priority   Improve Network   

 
** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 
 
KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 
  

Page 118



 
 

 

Page 119



TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale TC/09/21 

Name of Request Originator Councillor ONeill 

Project Manager & Ext John McAuley – 

Completed by John McAuley Date Completed 30th June 2021 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location Additional street lighting column – at the rear of 8/10 Clarence Street, 
Rochdale 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To install an additional street lighting column at the rear of house of 
8/10 Clarence street Garage area. 

 Install small feeder pillar on the L.V. main at the rear of property
No 12

 Install 6mtr street lighting column & LED lantern at the rear of
property No 8/10 on the boundary line

 Install 12mtrs 50mm2 Ducting in carriageway
 16mtrs 6mm² 3 core SWA Cable

Installation Costs - £5,306.10 

Tree pruning - £500.00 

Future maintenance / accrual costs - £53.12 (per annum) - £796.80 
(index linked) for the term of the PFI Contract in 2036. 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

The project will improve both the lighting in the area and public safety 
using an energy efficient LED lantern with the functionality to dim 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To enhance the lighting in the area and improve public safety 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

The assumptions are 

1. The street lighting column can be installed in the proposed location
2. The street lighting proposed ducting and cabling can be installed
3. That the tree pruning estimate is sufficient based on current foliage

APPENDIX 4K

Page 120



Risks that may change estimate 
 
The estimate may change if any of points 1; 2; 3 are affected once the work has started on site due to 
unforeseen circumstances 

Total Estimated Fees £ N/A 

Total Estimated Works Costs 
£5,306.10 (Installation) + £500.00 (Tree pruning)  
= £5,806.10 

Total Cost 
£5,806.10 (installation) + £796.80(maintenance /accrual) 
= £6,602.90 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code  

 

CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  Within 2 Months of commissioning 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 
 

Completion Date  

Evidence 

 
 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being allocated 
as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service 

 

Date 30th June 2021 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 
KEY 
 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 
Page 121



TC/10/21

APPENDIX 4L

Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



(See note below)

Note
Quote 1 for doors and windows
Cost £6,860 x 2 (downstairs and upstairs) = £13,720

Page 125



Page 126



QUOTE 1

Page 127



QUOTE 2

Page 128



QUOTE 1

P
age 129



QUOTE 2

Page 130



Page 131



LATE ITEMS

ROCHDALE NORTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/22

Rochdale North Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Norden Yes

Place

Ward Councillors £3,562.72

Healey No Councillor Heakin £19,276.11

Spotland & 

Falinge

Yes

Place

Ward Councillors £2,155.80TC/15/21 Spotland Old Kick Pitch lights

Project Description Supply and installation of new LED low energy floodlights and electrical connections at the bases of the four columns to improve the lighting at Spotland 

Old Kick Pitch to enhance the facilities for the local community.  New lighting will improve electrical safety, reduce energy consumption and CO2 

emissions.  (Project brief at Appendix 5C)

Risk implication/

Alternatives considered

Availability and increase in costs of equipment.  Unforeseen electrical or mechanical faults.

Risk implication/

Alternatives considered

Rochdale Township Fund's terms and conditions, under items that may not be funded, state repairing unadopted roads.  Dell Road is unadopted highway 

and there is a risk that the future maintenance will become the responsibility of Rochdale Borough Council if this scheme is implemented.  If the road has 

significantly further degraded this may change the cost of the works.

It is not the Council’s responsibility to repair and maintain this or any other unadopted road, the Council only being liable for maintaining adopted Highways.  

There are provisions for maintenance within Highways legislation placing responsibility on the owners whose properties front on to the stretch of unadopted 

road requiring repair. Ownership of all interests fronting Dell Road have been established via the Land Register and it is they who are responsible for its 

maintenance.  If the Council was to maintain this portion of road, it would make itself very vulnerable for all future maintenance liability for the road, for 

which there is no budget. Given the provisions of Highway legislation there is little to justify maintenance of this road by the Council  in what is a 

predominantly rural setting with limited vehicular traffic.  If authorised it sets a dangerous precedent for claims for maintenance by the Council of other 

unadopted roads in the borough which are in a similarly poor condition and of which there are many.

TC/14/21 Dell Road resurfacing

Project Description Resurfacing of unadopted Dell Road outside the frontages of cottages/residential properties to allow better access to both pedestrians and vehicles.  

(Project brief at Appendix 5B)

Risk implication/

Alternatives considered

Availability and increase in cost of specified vehicle activated speed sign.

Ref Name of Project

TC/13/21 Elmsfield Avenue vehicle activated speed sign

Project Description Supply and installation of a vehicle activated speed sign with solar panel on Elmsfield Avenue, Norden to improve road and public safety by raising drivers 

speed awareness.  Drivers will be provided with a real time message of their speed as they approach the sign and when they exceed a pre-set threshold 

limit, the sign will display a sad/smiley face in amber LEDs to prompt them to reduce their speed.  (Project brief at Appendix 5A)

Page 1 of 2

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 8a



Rochdale North Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed project for decision

Ward
Fund Criteria & 

Priorities Met
Request Originator Cost

Central 

Rochdale

Yes

Place

Councillor Rana £2,202

Risk implication/

Alternatives considered

Estimate may change if elements of the handrails are found to be inadequately fixed to the walls or ground and consideration may have to be given to 

replacing any defective fixings.  Also if the extent of the rusting on the handrails in areas is so severe that painting is not a viable solution.

Ref Name of Project

RP/10/21 Subways handrails repaint

Project Description Repaint the steel handrails (length 130m) located in the three interlinked subways in the area around Mardyke Flats, (Spotland Road, College Bank East 

and College Bank West subways).  The handrails that assist the public along the steeper lengths of the subways have weathered over time and show 

signs of extensive rust.  Works will involve the light abrade of the handrails and brackets and removal of dirt and grease before the application of 

Hammerite Ultima Matt white paint.  (Project brief at Appendix 5D)

Page 2 of 2

P
age 133



 

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM 

 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North TC/13/21       

Name of Request Originator Norden Ward Councillors 

Project Manager & Ext John McAuley  

Completed by John McAuley Date Completed 15/07/2021 

A.  DETAILS OF SCHEME 

Scheme Name & Location VAS – Driver Feedback Sign - Elmsfield Avenue, Norden 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To install a Vehicle Activated Sign (VAS) on Elmsfield Avenue to give 
drivers sufficient notice and awareness of their speed – Traffic 
Engineer to confirm location. 
 

 
 
Installation  
 
To install 89mm2 WBP with solar panel, install and commission VAS 
detailed above. 
 
£ 2,937.72 
 
Routine Maintenance 

 
To carry out annual routine maintenance regime 
 
£ 125.00 
 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

To improve road and public safety including driver speed awareness 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To reduce the number and risk of traffic accidents / incidents 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

 

APPENDIX 5A

Page 134



B.  ESTIMATE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

That VAS can be installed in the preferred location 

Risks that may change estimate 
Subject to increase price and availability of VAS specified 
Total Estimated Fees (Nett) N/A 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) 
Installation £ 2,937.72  + Maintenance £625 (based on a 
5 year program)  = £3,562.72 (total) 

**Total Cost (Nett) 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£3,562.72 

Amount Approved by Township  Cost Code  

 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date  Within 3 months of receiving commission 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

eg start within two months of receiving commission.  Evidence: fees being expended on system. 
 
 

Completion Date  

Evidence 

eg completion within six months of start date.  Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of 
final account 

 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 15th July 2021 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
 Improve Safety   
Accessibility   Accident Reduction   
Condition   Reduce Congestion   
Township Priority   Improve Network   

 
** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 
 
KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 135



TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  PPRROOJJEECCTT  BBRRIIEEFF  AANNDD  
CCOOMMMMIISSSSIIOONNIINNGG  FFOORRMM Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North TC/14/21 

Name of Request Originator Councillor Kieran Heakin 

Project Manager & Ext Gerard Proudman – 

Completed by Gerard Proudman Date Completed 20 July 2021 

AA.. DDEETTAAIILLSS  OOFF  SSCCHHEEMMEE

Scheme Name & Location Frontages to cottages / residential properties – Unadopted road 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

Due to road closure at Dell Road there is only one entrance / exit  – 

The current state of the road is riddled with pot holes and is a health 
and safety hazard to all users of Healey Dell 

Resurfacing of unadopted road outside of residential properties to allow 
better access to both pedestrians and vehicles. 

Resurfacing to 90mm 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

A smooth and safe road for all to traverse allowing safer and better 
access to Healey Dell residents, businesses and visitors 

Township Priorities Met 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

BB.. EESSTTIIMMAATTEE

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

Due to Corona Virus Pandemic material costs may increase  
As per quotation from Balfour Beatty (James Mills) 

Risks that may change estimate 

As above 

Total Estimated Fees (Nett) £917.91 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) £18,358.20 

Total Cost (Nett) £19,276.11 

Amount Approved by Township £ Cost Code 

APPENDIX 5B

Page 136



CC..    TTIIMMEESSCCAALLEESS  

Estimated Start Date  ASAP 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

 
Works will commence within one month of receiving order 

Completion Date ASAP 

Evidence 

 
 

 

DD..    AAUUTTHHOORRIISSAATTIIOONN  

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service Date 20 July 2021 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 
 
KEY 
 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 137



 

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM 

 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North TC/15/21       

Name of Request Originator Spotland & Falinge Ward Councillors 

Project Manager & Ext John McAuley  

Completed by John McAuley Date Completed 13th July 2021 

A.  DETAILS OF SCHEME 

Scheme Name & Location Spotland Old Kick Pitch 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

To improve the sport pitch lighting at Spotland Old Kick Pitch – existing 
floodlights in poor condition and high energy consumption, electrical 
connections at the bases of the 4 columns also in poor condition and 
require upgrading to current standards 
 
Proposal 
 

 To replace four existing floodlights with equivalent LED low 
energy floodlighting. 

 To replace existing electrical supply termination units at the 
base of the 4 columns with new electrical cut outs 

 To make safe existing base compartment covers 
 To electrically test on completion of work 

 
To cost to carry out remedial work - £2,155.80 + vat 
 

Scheme comments from 
Highways 

To improve the lighting on the sports pitch and electrical safety, 
reducing energy consumption and CO2 Emissions. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

To improve facilities for the local community 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Capital 

B.  ESTIMATE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

 Site inspection carried out  
 That lighting columns can be lowered 
 That LED floodlights specified are in stock and available  
 Access to building adjacent sports pitch 

Risks that may change estimate 
 

 Availability of equipment and increase in costs 
 Any unforeseen electrical or mechanical faults 

APPENDIX 5C

Page 138



Total Estimated Fees (Nett) £ N/A 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) £ 2,155.80 

**Total Cost (Nett) 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£2,155.80 

Amount Approved by Township  Cost Code  

 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date  Within 3 months of receiving commission 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

eg start within two months of receiving commission.  Evidence: fees being expended on system. 
 
 

Completion Date  

Evidence 

eg completion within six months of start date.  Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of 
final account 
 
 
 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service 
 

Date 13 July 2021 

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
 Improve Safety   
Accessibility   Accident Reduction   
Condition   Reduce Congestion   
Township Priority   Improve Network   

 
** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 
 
KEY 

 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 139



 

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND 
COMMISSIONING FORM 

 

Township Ref Service Ref 

Township Rochdale North RP/10/21       

Name of Request Originator Councillor Rana 

Project Manager & Ext Andy Collins  

Completed by Andy Collins Date Completed 28/07/21 

A.  DETAILS OF SCHEME 

Scheme Name & Location Handrail Repainting Scheme around Mardyke and Spotland Road 
Subway 

Scheme Description (include 
as much information as 
possible) 

There are three interlinked subways in the area around Mardyke Flats. 
(Spotland Road, College Bank East and College Bank West Subways). 
The footways connecting these subways have a number of steel 
handrails available to assist the public along the steeper lengths. These 
handrails have weathered over time and are now showing signs of 
heavy rusting. It is proposed to lightly abrade the handrails and 
brackets, wash them down to remove dirt and grease and to apply 
Hammerite Ultima Matt white paint to them. As the work will be on-
going whilst pedestrians continue to use the footways signs and 
barriers will be provided to maintain safe access. The proposed length 
of handrail to be treated is 130m and the plan below indicates the 
position of the lengths of hand rail affected. 

  
Scheme comments from 
Highways 

This work will benefit the area by providing additional protection to the 
handrails thereby increasing their lifecycle. It will also make the area 
more pleasant to use and encourage members of the public to use the 
subways rather than attempting to cross the busy roads. 

Desired Outcome (what is 
required by the scheme) 

The existing handrails will be refurbished resulting in them having a 
longer life expectancy. The area will become more pleasant and 
members of the public will be more willing to use the subways. 

Township Priorities Met Place 

Land Owner Rochdale Council 

Public Consultation No 

Proposed Source of Funding Township Revenue 

APPENDIX 5D

Page 140



 

B.  ESTIMATE 

Assumptions made during preparation of estimate 

It is assumed that there are no defects present which affect the fixing of the handrails to the walls and 
ground. The extent of the work does not increase or change from that described above. The condition of 
the handrails are suitable for this type of work. 

Risks that may change estimate 
If elements of the handrails are found to be inadequately fixed to the walls or ground consideration may 
have to be given to replacing any defective fixings. If the extent of the rusting in areas is so severe that 
painting is not a viable solution. 

Total Estimated Fees (Nett) £184 

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett) £2018 

**Total Cost (Nett) 
Estimate valid for a 6 month period 

£2202 

Amount Approved by Township  Cost Code  
 

C.  TIMESCALES 

Estimated Start Date  Within 2 months of receiving the commission 

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application) 

Evidence 

Work begins on site 

Completion Date 
10 working days after commencement of work on site (Weather 
depending) 

Evidence 

Work will be complete on site 
 

D.  AUTHORISATION 

I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being 
allocated as approved at Committee 

Date Committee Approved Scheme  

Signature of Head of Service  Date  

Signature of Townships & 
Communities Manager 

 Date  

Signature of Township Chair  Date  

 

E.  BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY) 

TAMP Objectives LTP Criteria 
 Improve Safety   
Accessibility   Accident Reduction   
Condition   Reduce Congestion   
Township Priority   Improve Network   

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct. 
 

KEY 
 To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal 
 To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office 
 To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer 

 

Page 141



 

Report to Rochdale North Township Committee 

 

 

Date of Meeting 26th July 2021 
Portfolio Leader of the Council 
Report Author Julie Simpson 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Permanent Diversion of Part of Definitive Restricted Byway RocDRupp12 at Stoney 
Heys in the Healey Ward 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The Council has a Statutory Duty to maintain and keep the definitive map under 

continuous review, this may be carried out by many methods, diverting, closing 
or adding a right of way.   
 
The property owner (the applicant) of Stoney Heys Barn has applied under 
Section 119 Highways Act 1980 to divert part of a legally recorded right of way 
running adjacent to the front of their property to allow for a development to be 
carried out. 
 
Section119 Highways Act 1980 allows the Council to consider an application if 
it is in the interest of the owner, occupier or lessee.  As part of that order there 
is a consultation period, should the Council receive relevant objections to the 
order the Council have no option other than to refer it to the Planning 
Inspectorate. 
 
The property owner has received Planning authorisation from Rochdale Council 
to undertake development works to their property in the location where the right 
of way currently runs. 
 
The landowner of the adjacent properties and land over which the diverted route 
will run has provided his agreement for the footpath to be diverted from his land 
fronting the other properties to the proposed location. 
 
This diversion will not alter the use of the section of the right of way to be 
diverted it will send the legitimate users across a field area instead of a road. 
 
The applicant is responsible for all fees in respect of this diversion. 
 
  
 

Page 142

Agenda Item 9



 

Recommendation 

 
2. I recommend that the Committee review the report content and agree with the 

Council proceeding with an order under section119 Highways Act 1980 to 
divert part of definitive footpath RocDRupp12. 
 
The Council to confirm the order if there are no objections or to submit to the 
Planning Inspectorate for a decision should one or more relevant objections 
be received by the Council. 
 
That following receipt of any instructions from the Head of Environmental 
Services, the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be 
authorised to prepare the appropriate legal documents and execute such 
documents on behalf of the Council.  
   

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. The Council are obligated under Statutory Duty to keep and maintain the 

definitive map and statement and to ensure it is under continuous review. 
 
A method of reviewing the map and statement is by the implementation of a 
Highways Act order under Section 119, a Public path Diversion Order to divert 
part of a definitive route if it is expedient to do so in the best interest of the 
owner, occupier or lessee of land crossed by the path. 
 
A property owner has applied to divert part of a right of way under Section 119 
to implement a Rochdale Council authorised planning application to improve 
their property. 
 
The process involves a period of public and statutory consultation during this 
objections to the order may be received, the Council are unable to confirm an 
opposed order and shall therefore submit the relevant paperwork to the 
Planning Inspectorate, this may result in a decision being made either by 
agreement with the Council or the opposition by written representations or 
Public inquiry. 
 
The diverted route is over a grassed field area, the Council has received 
permission from the relevant landowner to run the diverted section in this 
location. 
 
The diverted route is more commodious to the general public and all fees for 
the order is paid by the applicant. 
 

 

Page 143



Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

 
An order carried out under Section 119 Highways Act 1980 is a Public Path 
Diversion Order, the legislation provides for landowners, occupiers and lessee 
to apply to divert a right of way if it appears to the Council that it is expedient to 
do so. 
 
The proposal assists the Council to meet their statutory duty of continuously 
reviewing the definitive map and statement. 
 
The full route in question is identified as a restricted byway and can be used 
legally by horse riders, pedal cyclist and pedestrians and currently runs over a 
road leading to the properties at Stoney Heys, Rochdale. 
 
The section to be diverted runs only to the front of the 3 properties along the 
restricted byway.  The remainder of the route will continue to run over the road 
leading to the properties as the land adjacent is used by the local farmer for 
grazing. 
 
The legal use of the right of way will not be changed by this diversion it will 
continue to be used by the relevant users of a restricted byway. 
 
 
 
 Alternatives Considered 

 
The alternative is not to make the order and maintain the current location of the 
restricted byway, However, the Council has provided Planning Permission for 
improvement works to the property, these works could not be implemented 
should the right of way remain running along the road to Stoney Heys. 
 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 

 
The applicant is responsible for all associated costs of the order, which include 
the Legal order and any expenses which may be incurred in bringing the site of 
the diverted sections to a standard agreeable to the Council (Rights of Way 
Officer) to ensure ease of use by the general public. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

Page 144



6.  
The risks associated with this application is the landowner may apply for 
compensation for losing use of his land over which the diverted section will 
run.  
 
If the Committee agree with the recommendation to proceed with the order, 
I shall ensure that the landowner will not seek any compensation prior to the 
matter being submitted to the Council’s Legal Service, in the event the 
landowner does not agree the order it will not proceed unless the applicant 
will agree to pay the landowner compensation. 
 
 
 
 

  

Consultation 

 
7. The Council are obliged to carry out a formal statutory consultation with the 

general public and the relevant Council list of consultees as part of the 
process. 
 
An informal consultation has been carried out with the Council members of the 
Rights of Way Forum, many views/comments have been received however 
these are not a point of law and may not be considered. 
 
The Council’s Legal Service, Financial Services and Senior Management 
within Environmental Management have been consulted. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Julie Simpson file  
RocDRupp12  

Environmental Management, Green 
Lane, Heywood, OL10 2DY 

 

For Further Information Contact: Julie Simpson, , 
julie.simpson@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 145



 
Page 146



 

Page 147



 

Report to Rochdale North Township Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 26th July 2021 
Portfolio Leader of the Council 
Report Author Julie Simpson 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Permanently Stop up Part of Definitive Footpath HeyFp25 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. 

 
Section 118 Highways Act 1980 confirms that the Council may stop up a 
right of way should it be expedient to do so and if it is not needed for public 
use. 
 
Definitive footpath HeyFp25 shown by a solid black line on the plans below 

is identified on the definitive map and described in the related statement as 

running from Black Dad to Black Dad Lane and continuing to Shepherds 

Hey. The description in the statement does not state that it runs from 

HeyBp111 which would connect the footpath to the network in the vicinity of 

the farm.  The footpath  appears to lead from the rear of Black Dad Farm 

and proceed in a north-westerly direction away from HeyBp111. This route 

does not therefore connect with any highway nor to the definitive route at 

Black Dad.   

 
A bridleway runs over Black Dad Lane labelled as HeyBp14 that leads to 
Black Dad Farm and links the network of rights of way in the area. 
 
The landowner at Black Dad Farm has applied to the Council to delete that 
part of definitive footpath HeyFp25 that leads from the rear of Black Dad 
Farm to the bridleway HeyBp14.   
  
The Council may proceed with this request by implementing Section 118 
Highways Act 1980 as: 
 

 HeyFp25 does not appear to connect to the network leading south 
from Black Dad Farm. 

 

 There is a route of a higher standard that leads to Black Dad Farm 
and the network of rights of way in the area. 

 

Page 148

Agenda Item 10



 It does appear to the Council that the section of HeyFp25 requested 
to be stopped up is not needed for public use.  

 
 
Section 118 Highways Act 1980 confirms that should the order be opposed 

the Council may not confirm the order and an application  will have to be 

submitted to the Secretary of State to decide whether the footpath will likely 

be used by the public having regard to the effect the extinguishment of part 

of this right of way would have on the land served by the footpath. 

 
The associated costs for Officer/Legal time and advertising costs will 
be borne by the Landowner.   

 

Recommendation 

 
2. 

 
 
That the Council proceed with a Public Path Extinguishment Order to stop 
up part of the footpath under Section 118 Highways Act 1980.  
 
In the event the Council receive objections to the order the matter is referred 
to the Secretary of State for their consideration and decision.  
 
That the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be authorised 
to execute the Change of Control Notice and enter into any legal 
agreements necessary to give effect to this decision. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
 
3. Under section 130 Highways Act 1980 the Council have a duty to assert and 

protect the rights of the general public to the use and enjoyment of any right 
of way. 
 
Under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 the Council 
should keep the definitive map and statement under continuous review and 
one method is to permanently alter a definitive footpath either by 
extinguishment and/or diversion.  
 
On the definitive map and statement the footpath does not appear to 
continue to link the network of rights of way on the south easterly side from 
Black Dad Farm. 
 
There are no historical features along this route that may indicate that it 
should be in existence. 
 
The general public appear to always use the bridleway leading to Black Dad 
as it connects with other rights of way in the area. 
 

 

Page 149



Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 

Whilst the Council have a duty to protect the rights of the general public and 
consider the safety aspects whilst using the definitive network of rights of 
way we have also to consider the location of networking and transport. 
 
A definitive route exists that does not seem to lead to any point on the 
network forming a cul de sac, it does not allow the general public to pass 
and repass only to return from where they came.  
 
The landowner has applied to stop up part of HeyFp25 from an existing 
bridleway at Black Dad Lane to the rear of Black Dad Farm as it is not 
required for public use. 
 
The Council are able to continue with an order under Section 118 Highways 
Act 1980, the legislation is in place to enable the Council to proceed. 
 
The order may not be confirmed by the Council should any relevant (points 
of law) objections be submitted, the matter is considered and decided by the 
Secretary of State either by written representations or Public Inquiry. 
 
All costs will be paid by the landowner 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The alternative is to leave the full length of footpath HeyFp25 on the 
definitive map and statement.   
 
Divert the section of footpath to meet with the network of rights of way in the 

area.  However, the land owner may not accept this proposal and the costs 

of diverting may fall to the Council. 

The Council should support that this section of HeyFp25 is not necessary for 
public use as it is not used.  It has not been highlighted to the Council as 
unable to proceed further than Black Dad Farm, this would appear to 
indicate that this part of HeyFp25 is not being used. 
 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The Landowner will bear the associated costs for the order, the costs relate 

to Officer/Legal time and Advertising costs. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no risks associated with this proposal, the legislation is in place 

to allow Council’s to consider this action for rights of way that are not 
necessary as not being used. 
 

Page 150



There are alternative routes of a higher status that are currently used that 
connect to the network of rights of way. 
 
This proposal meets the Council’s obligations in respect of continually 
reviewing the definitive map and statement. 
 
 

Consultation 

 
7. An informal consultation was carried out with representatives of the 

Council’s Rights of Way Forum members, the views/comments provided 
were mixed whilst some had no opinion others were against it. 
 
There is also a formal consultation with the Statutory Consultees during the 
order, and an objection period during which any member of the public may 
submit an objection, the Council will decide whether these are relevant and 
a point of law, any relevant objections received will deem the matter to be 
referred to Secretary of State.  
 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. File Stopping Up of Part of 
HeyFp25 

Environmental Management, Green 
Lane, Heywood, OL10 2DY 

 

For Further Information Contact: Julie Simpson, 
julie.simpson@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Map showing the route of HeyFp25 proposed to be stopped up and the route of 

bridleway HeyBp14 leading to Black Dad Farm along Black Dad Lane.  

 

Page 152



 

Map showing the definitive routes in the area and the cul de sac of HeyFp25 at Black 

Dad Farm 

Page 153


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Rochdale North Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2021/2022
	Appendix 1 -Appointments report
	Append. 1 for Rochdale North Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2021/2022

	7 Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Rochdale North Township Funds Review

	8 Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 1 - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 2 - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 3 - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4 - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4A - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4B - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4C - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4D - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4E - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4F - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4G - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4H - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4I - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4J - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4K - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22
	Appendix 4L - Rochdale North Township Funds 2021/22

	8a Additional Funding Applications
	Appendix 5A - Rochdale North Township Funds Report (26 Jul 2021)
	Appendix 5B - Rochdale North Township Funds Report (26 Jul 2021)
	Appendix 5C - Rochdale North Township Funds Report (10 Aug 2021)
	Appendix 5D - Rochdale North Township Funds Report (10 Aug 2021)

	9 Permanent Diversion of Part of Definitive Restricted Byway RocDRupp12 at Stoney Heys in the Healey Ward
	10 Permanently Stop up Part of Definitive Footpath HeyFp25



